








August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 22

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
5:30 P.M., P.D.S.T., TUESDAY, AUGUST 4, 2020

ELKO CONVENTION CENTER, TURQUOISE ROOM,
700 MOREN WAY, ELKO, NEVADA

NOTE: The order of the minutes reflects the order business was conducted.

CALL TO ORDER

Jeff Dalling, Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Commission, called the meeting to order at
5:30 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Evi Buell
Gratton Miller
Jeff Dalling
John Anderson
Stefan Beck
Tera Hooiman

Excused: Giovanni Puccinelli.

City Staff Present: Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Michele Rambo, Development Manager
Jamie Winrod, Fire Department
Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk
Paul Willis, IS Department
Diann Byington, Minutes Clerk
Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

July 7, 2020 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

***Motion: Approve the July 7, 2020 Minutes.

Moved by Gratton Miller, Seconded by John Anderson.



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 22

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

I. NEW BUSINESS

A. PUBLIC HEARING

1. Review and consideration of Tentative Map No. 5-20, filed by BDSA, LLC, for the
development of a subdivision entitled Tower Hill, Unit 4, involving the proposed
division of approximately 8.601 acres of property into 5 lots for residential
development and 1 remainder lot within the R1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning
District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the southwest side of Deerfield Way.
(APNs 001-929-125)

Scott MacRitchie clarified that he was also with JTM, which developed the first three phases of
this subdivision. They own this property under another entity.

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated July 20,
2020. Staff recommended conditional approval with the findings and conditions listed in the
Staff Report.

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, explained that the Planning Department recommendations and
conditions were included in the Staff Report, and she recommended approval.

Ms. Rambo stated that the Engineering Department had no comments.

Jamie Winrod, Fire Department, had no comments.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, recommended approval as presented by staff, provided
that the grading supports the required water pressure as stipulated in NRS.

Mr. MacRitchie asked if any of the conditions had changed since the Staff Report was written.

Ms. Rambo stated that the Planning Commission would need to eliminate Condition No. 13 in
regards to the Shared Use Path, because it was taken care of with Phase 3 of the subdivision.

Mr. MacRitchie explained that they didn’t have Phase 4 in their original Tentative Map. How
much of the Shared Use Path they needed to put in was determined on the lineal footage of their
property on Lamoille Highway, and it was all put in Phases 1 through 3. He also asked if Ms.
Rambo had received the Soils and Hydrology reports.

Ms. Rambo stated that she had received those the previous day.

Commissioner Evi Buell asked if the hydrology and soils reports took care of the City Manager’s
Office concerns. (Yes)



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 22

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to conditionally approve Tentative
Map No. 5-20 subject to the conditions found in the City of Elko Staff Report dated July
20, 2020, with modifications from the Planning Commission, listed as follows:

Development Department:

1. The subdivider is to comply with all provisions of the NAC and NRS pertaining to the
proposed subdivision.

2. Tentative Map approval constitutes authorization for the subdivider to proceed with
preparation of the Final Map and associated construction plans.

3. The Tentative Map must be approved by the Nevada Department of Environmental
Protection prior to submitting for Final Map approval by the City of Elko.

4. Construction plans must be approved by the Nevada Department of Environmental
Protection prior to issuance of a grading permit.

5. Tentative Map approval does not constitute authorization to proceed with site
improvements.

6. The applicant must submit an application for Final Map within a period of four (4)
years in accordance with NRS.360(1)(a).  Approval of the Tentative Map will
automatically lapse at that time.

7. A soils report is required with Final Map submittal.
8. A hydrology report is required with Final Map submittal.
9. Final Map construction plans are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City code.
10. The subdivision design and construction shall comply with Title 9, Chapter 8 of City

code.
11. The Utility Department will issue an Intent to Serve letter upon approval of the

Tentative Map by the City Council.
12. A modification from standards be approved by City Council for Lot 402, 403, 404,

and 405 to allow for shorter-than-required front lots widths.

Public Works Department:

13. All public improvements at time of development per Elko City code.

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the motion were the proposed subdivision and
development is in conformance with both the Land Use and Transportation Components of
the Master Plan as previously discussed in this report. The proposed subdivision and
development does not conflict with the Airport Master Plan; The City of Elko Development
Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure,
Transportation Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential Report – November 2012; The
Wellhead Protection Program; or applicable sections of the Elko City Code. The proposed
subdivision complies with Section 3-3-5(E)(2)(a)-(k) as discussed in this report and as
required by Section 278.349(3) of the Nevada Revised Statutes. 4. The property is not
located within the Redevelopment Area. Therefore, there is no conflict with the
Redevelopment Plan.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

5. Review, consideration, and possible action of Conditional Use Permit No. 3-20,
filed by Ruby Mountain Acton Academy on behalf of Gladys Burns, which would



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 22

allow for a teaching of the creative arts/childcare center within an R (Single-Family
and Multi-Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the southeast side of Birch Street,
approximately 125’ west of the intersection of Birch Street and Dotta Drive. (675 W.
Birch Street - APN 001-073-001)

Angela Heguy, Heguy Ranch, thanked the Commission for listening and hearing the item. She
explained that they are applying for a Conditional Use Permit at 675 W. Birch Street. They are
hoping to move their home school group to that location in order to maximize the benefits of the
large square footage upstairs, as well as the wonderful fenced backyard. They hope to be a great
member of the neighborhood and become an asset for the community.

Chairman Jeff Dalling called for public comment.

Liza Baumann, 975 Dotta Drive, explained that she lives two doors down from the subject
property. She wanted to make sure that everyone knew that they all have children and a lot of the
people that are here are teachers themselves. This is mainly about the neighborhood and the
effect that it will have on the people in the area. Ms. Baumann then read Exhibit 1 into the
record.

Louri Lesbo, 1010 Dotta Drive, stated that she had several letters to read into the record from
some of her neighbors that couldn’t make it to the meeting. The first letter she read was from Ms.
Carpenter on what her concerns were, which stated:

1. If this is a K-12 school, there will be older kids driving. Where are they going to
park? We all know kids speed. They are going to be flying down Dotta Drive and
Sewell Drive. There is a high potential for someone to get hurt. Will law enforcement
be on these drives before and after school?

2. If there are older kids attending this academy there is the potential for drug use. This
will increase the drug selling at Angel Park and along Dotta Drive. You not only
have elderly people living on Dotta and Birch, but also young kids. This becomes a
safety issue.

3. There are no sidewalks in front of the Burn’s home. Where will people walk?
4. If the Burn’s home is listed as Commercial property, does this mean that all the

homes along Dotta and Birch will be listed as commercial property as well. This will
decrease the value of all of our homes.

5. If the person running this academy is not a teacher, where are the kids getting their
assignments? Even if the person is a helper, shouldn’t he or she have some teaching
credentials?

6. Why were the homeowners on Dotta, Sewell, and Birch not notified of this
transaction? There are financial and safety concerns for everyone that is effected by
this change in a residential home.

She then read the letter into the record from Steven and Jennifer Hayes at 1024 Dotta Drive,
attached as Exhibit 2.
Ms. Lesbo read into the record Exhibit 3, from Earl and Mary Craig at 1030 Dotta Drive. She
also read into the record a letter from Melissa and Jordan Duke at 1011 Dotta Drive, attached as
Exhibit 4. Ms. Lesbo then read her own comments into the record, attached as Exhibit 5.



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 22

Chairman Dalling then read into the record an email submitted by Nann C. Hanley attached as
Exhibit 6.

An additional letter was submitted from Rick and Begonia Hull, which previously resided at
1011 Dotta Drive, attached as Exhibit 7.

Robert Loranger, 1000 Dotta Drive, stated that he has lived there for 12 years with his wife. It
has been a great place to live. Overtime, they have seen an increase in generalized non-
residential traffic, so he has many concerns with a new venture that is going to be changing a
residential single family home into some type of conditional use. He said he guessed it was a
school, it is called an academy, but as far as he was concerned, it is more of a business. It
contains people that are sending their children to a non-home location for training/education. He
didn’t understand a lot about the home school definition. It seemed like it was a very wide,
catchall, for how people may want to try to educate their children in a growing changing
environment. Angie Heguy came to him in March, before the COVID Lockdown, and it was a
cordial meeting. He found it a bit disturbing that Ms. Heguy stated they “will” be using the
Burn’s home as an academy. He thought the term “will” was a little strong, with not knowing
what the status was. One of the things that really bothered Mr. Loranger was the change of a
Conditional Use Permit. Apparently, the permit can be transferred to a new owner at some point.
It is fundamentally changing a single-family residence and zoning it to something different. We
don’t know what will happen in the future. Will this thing succeed? Clearly, they have looked at
expanding this initial school to include middle school and high school as a stretch goal. That was
very concerning to Mr. Loranger, because of what many of the other neighbors have said. What
are we really looking at here in terms of expansion and overall traffic? He finds the Conditional
Use Permit to be one major red flag. He explained that he didn’t know a lot of history about the
Conditional Use Permits. He knew that there had been, maybe four permits transferred to new
owners. He asked for some clarification on that. He thought that put everyone in a situation of
not knowing what the property is going to be in the future. You have changed the fabric and
culture of a well-established and mature neighborhood; by someone bringing in, what is
essentially a business. Mr. Loranger thought the Committee should consider denying this,
because it really is an increased safety, health, and insurance risk for the people that live in the
neighborhood due to additional pedestrian and traffic congestion during multiple times of the day
on a residential street that is already seeing increased traffic from non-residents. Another one of
Mr. Loranger’s major concerns was the off-street parking. He thought it was quite enlightening
that at some point he was going to be looking at a parking lot across the street from him.  He
didn’t consider that a good use of the property. He understood that there was a lot of logistics
involved with that. That parking lot would also increase multiple vehicle incident risk. He
thought one thing that hadn’t been looked at hard enough was some sort of risk assessment that
included all stakeholders involved with the potential Conditional Use Permit. Ultimately, Mr.
Loranger was recommending that the Commission deny the permit. There are a lot of other
opportunities. Right now, there are 16 commercial properties listed in Elko. Not all of them will
fit the applicant’s criteria, or their goals, but they are out there. There are other options too.
There is a potential for capital appreciation from a sale. He stated that he hoped that Acton of the
Rubies succeeded, but somewhere else.

Chairman Dalling wanted to help with Mr. Loranger’s question. He pointed out Staff
Recommendation No. 2 “The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 22

specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the Planning
Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another owner. Upon
issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all zoning and site
development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have been satisfied, the
conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with the land, whereupon
the maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well as compliance with other
provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the property owner.”

Michele Walsh, 491 W. Ash Street, said she could attest to the traffic issues with having Angel
Park and kids running wild. She didn’t know if this school would add to that. She stated that she
agreed with her neighbors. Her concerns were twofold. Her understanding was that this was an
online school. She asked if they were accredited and if they had a board. If they are not, Ms.
Walsh thought the Commission would be getting into some swampy, weedy areas that they may
not want to get into. The second question Ms. Walsh had was whether the Commission was
setting a precedent that they may not have to deal with years from now. Setting a precedent in a
residential neighbor, by bring in commercial properties. The Commission may not have to deal
with it, but those that live in neighborhood would. She asked the Commission to consider that
while they were making their decision.

Ajeet Milliard, 755 Country Lane, explained that she chose to have her child attend Acton of
Rubies. It is a home school supplement, where parents choose to take their children to have their
home school supplemented with accredited online versions of programs. She chose to take her
kid to Acton because it is small, and because it is run by somebody who really cares. No, Ms.
Heguy is not an accredited teacher, but it is a home school supplement and it’s the choice of the
people who take their children there. There are only ten families that bring their children to the
academy. It is called an academy by name, but it is a 401(c) 3. By definition, it is not a school.
The families that choose to take their children there take them there because they want
something different for children. They all live in neighborhoods; none of them wants additional
traffic. All the children that attend Ruby are under 12 years old. At this point, there is not going
to be a big community of teenagers. The kids that do attend Acton, and the Families that take
their children to Acton, are all very responsible. They all want something better for their
children, the future, and the community. There was a lot of mention of the community having a
lot of kids, and that is what they are here to support, that is what Acton is there to support. Ms.
Milliard wanted to be a voice in favor of Acton. It is positive and well established, and the
families that take their children there are good people. They don’t have teenagers that run
around, and they are responsible. They want their children to have the best that they can. She
also mentioned that with the number of people that take their children there, there would not be a
huge increase in traffic. They are all willing to work with Angie the way that they have to, to
help her be successful in the location that she has chosen. Ms. Milliard explained that Ms. Heguy
chose this location because she is a nonprofit. She just wants to provide a service for home
school families that choose something different for their children. No one wants to see the
neighborhood ruined or degraded in any way.

Lisa Donalson, 998 Northside Drive, explained that her children, Jillian and Hugh, attend Acton
Academy. Acton focuses on community, and on developing good community members and
leaders in the community. When this topic came up, both her children expressed interest in
speaking to the Commission.



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 22

Jillian Donalson said this was her speech about why Acton should get the permit. First of all,
why she thought Acton should get the permit was because they need a new space. At their
current space, they can’t hang their artwork up on the walls, or leave their stuff out, because the
Girl Scouts need that space for Girl Scouting. Miss Donalson thought that was very frustrating,
because they have to get their work done that day, unless they have a computer. At Acton, they
learn to be problem solvers, so if anyone has a problem they help them solve it, and they will
continue to do that at their new location too.

Hugh Donalson said the first thing that comes to mind when he thinks about Acton, is the word
learn, which learning is a little different for him because he learns reading differently. Acton
opens up possibilities, because you can learn in whatever way you want. He thought that was
really great, because he recently finished his first ever chapter book with no help. He thought that
was amazing. Why he thought Acton should get the permit was because they are working in a
shared space right now, which means they can’t leave their stuff out. If they do, it could get
messed up. Having a new space would make them able to leave out their work and display their
accomplishments. Mr. Donaldson thought that would help the Eagles work harder.

Vance McCann, Harper Drive, thought Acton should get the permit because they tend to learn
from their mistakes. It helps them learn. He really though that they could use the space, so they
could show everyone the things that they accomplish. When they accomplish them and put them
on display and people see it, they’ll be like “Yay! They did something and we really think it’s
great!”

Cathy McCann, 5348 Harper Drive, Osino, explained that she was Vance’s mom. She said they
were looking forward to being neighbors to the people in the area. The reason they want to be
neighbors is so that they can teach their children responsibility in a community. Sometimes
living far away from their neighbors makes it hard to serve their neighbors. They are looking
forward to being able to rake leaves and shovel snow for people. Ms. McCann said she
appreciated everyone’s concerns, and she understood that it is scary. She hoped that they would
get the chance to prove to everyone that they would be excellent neighbors.

Brinley Spencer, Osino, explained that she traveled to town all last year to be part of Acton.
Acton is a place where they gain support to their home school education, as well as develop their
leadership skills and find their passion for life. Please consider allowing Acton the Conditional
Use Permit for the property on Birch Street.

Joe Heguy, Elko County, explained that he was married to Angie Heguy. She started an amazing
program called Acton Academy. It is not technically a school. Their children are being
homeschooled, as well as the other children that are involved. They get together three times a
week so that they can do collaborative projects. It is an amazing and beautiful thing. However,
that’s not the point. The use of the property on Birch Street, as intended by the property owner,
was to allow Angie to use it to get these kids together several days a week. He feared that the
reason they were here was because they asked permission from all of the neighbors, instead of
asking forgiveness. At the end of the day, the footprint that having Acton on West Birch was
going to be minimal. We are talking about 5 or 6 cars a day, twice a day, three days a week. The
benefits are far larger. To deny someone to use their own private property in the manner they see
fit is Un-American. Mr. Heguy said he wished they could have gotten together with some of the



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 22

neighbors that had concerns, so that they could have avoided this situation. Mr. Heguy also read
a letter from his daughter, Zoey Heguy.

Dear Planning Commission,
My name is Zoey Heguy. I want to ask you. If you ran a homeschool group guess how

much money you would make? Angie Heguy makes $0 and she puts all the money back into the
group to purchase supplies and provide a meeting place. I love Acton because I get to see my
friends, we get to play together and do projects. Please approve our permit. Thank you. From
Zoey.

Eric Walsh, 1491 W Ash Street, explained that the first he had heard about this was yesterday
evening, so he hasn’t had an opportunity to learn much about Conditional Use Permits or about
the Acton Academy. He stated that his concern had nothing to do with the school. His concern
was about having a commercial property come into a residential neighborhood and impact his
home value and potentially the taxes down the road. He wished he had learned about this earlier.
One of the reasons why he moved into that neighborhood, after living here for 15 years, was
because of the residential nature of that neighborhood. He moved from Juniper Street, where
there are a lot of dual use properties and commercial entities, to get away from the traffic and to
get away from the issues that come with that type of property. He purposely moved to a
residential area, after taking 5 years to find a place that checked all the boxes. Seeing this sort of
change coming makes him scared and nervous. That is why he is against the Conditional Use
Permit. He didn’t know what it would do to his home value or taxes.

Larissa Taylor, 101 Pine Street, explained that she had no idea what she was going to say, or if
she was going to say anything. She came as a parent whose child attends Acton. Listening to the
comments and concerns, Ms. Taylor felt that she needed to voice her concerns with what has
been said. She felt like so many of the things that have been mentioned are fear based and have
nothing to do with Acton. There were several things that she felt had nothing to do with Acton,
such as drug use, speeding, using the road as a short cut, and home values being decreased. The
plan is that Acton is there as a support for the community, and to better the community. She said
she would venture to say that you would be hard pressed to find a better group of kids, a more
responsible group of kids, than what you would find in attendance at Acton. The kids clean up at
the end of the day. They clean the toilets and sweep the floors. That value is taught. They are
there to be a support for parents and their kids’ learning. It is not to bring things down. She felt it
was necessary to make it known that that stigma is being attached to Acton, and it has nothing to
do with Acton. They are more than willing to learn and take the necessary steps in order to make
those things happen. They don’t want the kids to be in danger. They want them to be able to get
out of the car and feel safe going into a space. She chose to take her kids to Acton as support to
herself. One of the main concerns that you’ll hear from non-homeschool families is “How is your
kid going to socialize and be able to be a member of society without being weird?” This is a way
for them to have their kids go out and socialize with other kids, and to be in a positive and safe
environment that promotes growth, individuality, and leadership. Ms. Taylor urged the
Commission not to take that away. She also mentioned that Angie was willing to work with the
City on sidewalks and parking.

Mike Lesbo, 1010 Dotta Drive, explained that his family built that house in 1967, and finished it
in 1969. He and his wife bought the house in 2004. He stated that he did not have any problem,
what so ever, with this academy, what they do, and how the kids benefit. However, as property
owners, they are talking about a neighborhood of $300,000 and above homes. He stated that he



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 22

was angry that this even got this far. He was surprised that they were at a meeting discussing
how someone who doesn’t live in the neighborhood could do this. He asked the Commission to
respect the property owners that live in the neighborhood when they are making their decision.

Jeanne Goss, 313 Fir Street, explained that she has lived in six houses within the tree streets. She
truly felt that that was her community. She walks in the community daily and knows many of the
people that have spoken both for and against this application. Ms. Goss said she could
understand being a part of that community that there is an increase in traffic and there are
different zoning things. She explained that her children started attending Acton after Covid-19
and they have flourished. It is a wonderful group of people. They truly support community and
positive growth. Ms. Goss thought it would be beneficial to the neighborhood. They are asking
permission. There is drug use in the neighborhood, and those people don’t come and ask for
permission. She explained that she would be walking to school every day. The way she
understood it was the Commission had 1 year to give Acton a chance. She guaranteed that
everyone in the community would be happy if they did.

Ms. Laughlin explained that with any application that is received within the City of Elko, staff
evaluates all aspects of the City Code. She wanted to go through some of those and emphasize
some key elements. She said she would do her best to address the questions for the City that
were brought up in public comment. She then began to go through the City of Elko Staff Report
dated July 20, 2020. She clarified that this was not a rezone and the property would remain
zoned residential. Ms. Laughlin wanted to bring up the NRS. NRS 484(B).287, “When
pedestrian must yield right-of-way to vehicle; when crossing at crosswalk is required; crossing
diagonally; additional penalty if violation occurs in pedestrian safety zone”, states that every
pedestrian crossing a highway at any point other than within a marked crosswalk or within an
unmarked crosswalk at an intersection shall yield the right-of-way to all vehicles upon the
highway, and a pedestrian shall not cross an intersection diagonally unless authorized by official
traffic-control devices. The NRS does not state that students, or parents, cannot cross this street
at that intersection just because it does not have a crosswalk. There is pedestrian access through
sidewalks throughout the neighborhood that can get the students to the proposed location. There
is not sidewalk in front of the property, but one of the conditions is talking about the drop-off
and pick-up zone. If this approved, and plans are submitted to the City, then staff would look at
whether it is necessary to have sidewalk in front of the property. One of the public comment
questions was regarding the setbacks of the property, and how the property is developed. The
property, as the principal permitted structure, does meet all yard requirements for the principal
permitted structure.

Chairman Dalling asked how many students were enrolled.

Ms. Heguy stated that she had 24 students.

Chairman Dalling thought they would need three stalls. He then asked how many employees Ms.
Heguy had.

Ms. Heguy explained that it was just herself.



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 10 of 22

Chairman Dalling thought that figured out to be three parking spaces for the students, and one
for the employee. He said it would be four. He asked if it would be four spaces, plus a handicap
space.

Ms. Laughlin clarified that it would be four, plus the access isle for the handicap.

Chairman Dalling asked if they had that currently. He asked if there was a three-car garage.

Ms. Heguy explained that there was room for 3.4 spaces, and they would widen that to account
for the accessibility.

Ms. Laughlin continued going through the Staff Report. She thought it might be a good time to
answer some of the questions about transferring the CUP. Two years ago, there was a new owner
for the Noah’s Ark Daycare Center. With the new owner, the Planning Commission transferred
their CUP. That is a facility in a residential zoning district, surrounded by other schools and
neighborhoods. They do have a CUP, and they got it transferred. The Planning Commission had
that hearing, and made the determination on whether it was transferable or not. It does states that
there is one year to be actively engaged. Staff has considered “actively engaged” to be items
such as getting a building permit or a business license. One other point, just because you are
issued a Conditional Use Permit doesn’t mean you have to continue that use at that property. She
continued to go through Staff Report. Staff recommended conditional approval, with the eight
findings and eleven conditions listed in the Staff Report. Several of the conditions address the
concerns of the neighbors and City Staff. When Staff follows up on Conditional Use Permits it is
usually when there is a complaint from adjacent neighbors. Staff wants to eliminate any of these
conflicting issues before a permit is issued. Condition No. 3 states that the garage and the street
cannot be used as part of the required off-street parking stalls, which is how all commercial and
residential properties are treated.  A Variance for parking in the front yard setback must be
approved prior to issuing the Building Permit for the parking area. The reason for that condition
is that in Section 3-2-17 it states that no required off-street parking can be in the front yard
setback or the side yard setbacks in a Residential Zoning District. A Parcel map is required to be
approved and recorded prior to the opening of the school. As many of the old tree street
properties are, this parcel was created by Map No. 5, and it was created with 25’ wide lots. There
are several lots, but it is evaluated as one parcel. If you look at the legal description this parcel
was created by lots 9, 10, 11, and a portion of vacated E Street. A Parcel map would combine all
of that into one parcel. We don’t allow buildings to cross lot lines, therefore the Parcel Map
would clean that up. Another condition is that a designated drop-off and pick-up location shall be
established. This area can only be in front of 675 W. Birch Street and should be properly marked.
The permittee is required to prevent disruption to vehicular traffic, and ensure pedestrian safety
by establishing staggered drop-off and pick-up times at sufficient intervals to ensure the street is
not blocked and parking does not extend beyond the frontage of 675 W. Birch Street. The drop-
off and pick-up times are restricted to 3 days a week. The ADA Ramps shall be installed in the
front and rear yards, and any other areas where stairs prohibit the equitable use of the property.
As this is a change in Occupancy, the structure shall be brought into compliance with current
Building Code to conform to an education use. This shall include all accessibility requirements
per ICC A117.1 2009 as referenced by 2018 IBC. All work will require permits through the City
of Elko Building Department. Ms. Laughlin wanted to go through the questions for the City from
Liza. Ms. Bauman asked what the minimum requirements were for the Zoning District. Ms.
Laughlin explained that would be the yard setbacks, which would be 5 ½ feet on each interior



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 11 of 22

side yard, 15 feet to the house, 20 feet to the garage, and 15 feet in the rear, so it does meet those
requirements. Traffic Access Parking and Loading Regulations. Ms. Bauman asked what the
maximum capacity occupant load for the location, and if the City was requiring compliance for
an elementary or middle school. Ms. Laughlin explained that it would be up to Ms. Heguy to
provide the City the number of students based on the occupant load that is allowed within the
property and have to comply with 3-2-17 providing parking for that amount of occupant load.
Ms. Laughlin explained that the Conditional Use Permit isn’t renewed every year. Once you
have established your CUP and been approved, you have one year to be actively engaged in that
use at that property. If you are not, you lose your permission for that CUP. The only way a CUP
is going to be revoked is if there is a serious enough claim against the Conditional Use that Staff
brings it back to Planning Commission and asked to have the CUP revoked. She also explained
that the Planning Department and the Compliance Department within the City of Elko follow up
on the CUP. Staff reviews CUPs as conditions come up. Planning and Compliance Departments
staff are the ones that are responsible for continuing to make sure that they are in compliance.
Ms. Laughlin wanted to clarify again that this is not a rezone, it is not putting a Commercial
Zone on that property, and it will not change the valuation of a property based on the zoning of
the property. It will still be a principle permitted use of a single-family dwelling in an R Zoning
District, with a Conditional Use on that property.

Ms. Rambo stated that all her comments and conditions were incorporated into the Staff Report.
She wanted to touch on one of the public comments. Someone mentioned that the City didn’t
have a Compliance Department. Ms. Rambo stated that she is the Compliance Department. If
staff get complaints, or sees an obvious violation, then they do follow up. There are several steps
they have to go through in order check compliance and get people back into compliance.

Ms. Winrod explained that Chief Griego and she was working with Angie. Through their
discussions, they have found no issues with the 2018 Fire Code.

Ms. Laughlin stated that the City Manager’s Office recommended approval as presented by staff,
and any comments from the Engineering Department were incorporated into the Staff Report.

Commissioner Stefan Beck stated, as an educator, he recognized the importance of education.
His main concern was whenever a good portion of the neighborhood shows up, the Planning
Commission needed to take it seriously. That’s what our Country is supposed to be about.
Initially, he thought that it was going to be chaos with traffic, which was the portrait that was
initially painted. The applicant would be there Tuesday, Wednesday, and Thursday, and they
would have a pick-up twice a day. He thought the main concern was traffic patterns, kids getting
hurt, and disruption of a quiet neighborhood. That alone would be enough to cause serious
concern, but he wasn’t sure if that would actually happen. He said this was a tough one and he
just didn’t know. He thought it would be a minimal impact, not a major one. He said it was just
tough when that many neighbors show up and object. Commission Beck said that he would want
some assurance, but he didn’t know if that could be done. He asked if there was a way they
could assure the neighbors that it would be minimal impact.

Ms. Heguy stated that she had some stuff prepared for the Commission in regards to the
questions. She thought overall, and in general, everyone agreed. This is a neighborhood in a
wonderful community. It is their intention to keep it that way. She said that her grandparents
built the house 60 years ago and lived in it. They decided, instead of selling the home, that they



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 12 of 22

would like to see Ms. Heguy host the kids there three times a week. There will be minimal
traffic. There is a small number of families. Just because they are talking about 24 kids, it is not
24 cars. There are multiple kids per family, which includes her family. Many of the children live
in, or around, the neighborhood. They would be willing to walk and/or bike, as applicable. The
other families have worked out the best way to carpool and minimize traffic. They will also be
respectful of the neighbors and the other kids in the neighborhood. She has created some
staggered drop-off and pick-up times in order to minimize the traffic and to utilize off-street
parking. They will be operating Tuesday, Wednesday, and Thursday only. They will be very
respectful of loading and unloading in the designated area. Ms. Heguy also wanted to make a
quick comment. She explained that she was speaking with some of the families yesterday, in
regards to the context of the meeting, and what the purpose was of them being here tonight. She
asked the question, what does it mean to be a good neighbor. The children, for the most part,
came up with responses. Some of the response were: keeping the yard clean; being nice, kind,
and quiet; saying hello to the neighbors; lending a helping hand when you see something that
needs to be done, or someone that needs help; being in the neighborhood allows the children that
live outside of the City the opportunity to be good neighbor; to serve the community and serve
the neighborhood better, etc.

Commissioner Beck said this was a tough call. He asked if it was an economic advantage
because they already own the house. He also asked if they had looked at a commercial property,
or if they had explored other options.

Ms. Heguy said yes, and that she had looked at multiple different things. As far as being
economically advantaged, they are a 501(c)3 with limited funds. She explained that she was not
getting any financial gain, especially personally.

Chairman Dalling asked if they thought about selling the house and moving to a commercial
location.

Mr. Heguy said yes. Their intent with the house, because what Ms. Heguy is doing is expanding
so quickly, was to use it for a small amount of time in between what they are planning on doing.
They don’t want to change anything about the house. The traffic will be minimal, so any changes
that occur to the house will be for ADA compliance. Mr. Heguy said they were planning to do
something else soon, and they don’t want to change it from a residential property. In the
meantime, it would be a great place to use for the kids. He didn’t think it would detract from the
neighborhood at all, or affect the neighbors.

Commissioner Gratton Miller asked what time the school started and ended. He also asked
exactly what times the staggering drop-offs and pick-ups would be occurring.

Ms. Heguy explained that the school would begin at 8 a.m. In the afternoon, the younger children
leave at 1 p.m., and the older children leave at 3 p.m. Afternoon pick-up will be even less of an
impact.

Commissioner Tera Hooiman asked with the Covid-19 situation if Ms. Heguy thought there was
going to be an influx of students. She asked if that was something that they planned for and what
that looked like.



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 13 of 22

Ms. Heguy stated that she has had a lot of people contact her because of the Covid-19 situation.
She explained that she was at capacity right now. Every child that is coming next year was there
last year. Ms. Heguy felt it was important to serve those families first. They could possibly grow
into another location at some point, but not at W. Birch.

Commissioner Hooiman asked how many years Ms. Heguy has been doing this.

Ms. Heguy stated that it would be her 3rd year going into the fall.

Mr. Wilkinson said the limitation on parking would limit the occupancy.

Ms. Heguy said it was also the intention of really keeping the integrity there and maintaining the
neighborhood.

Chairman Dalling asked what the sidewalk story was. He felt like they hammered everyone on
sidewalk. He wondered if they could get a better clarification.

Ms. Laughlin said as the subdivision was developed many years ago the south side of W. Birch
does not have sidewalk, all the way from Dotta down the corner to Highland. Across the street
and the adjacent streets north of this property, do have sidewalk. Why this street wasn’t required
sidewalk at the time of development was beyond her. Keep in mind, if we require sidewalk just
in front of 675 W. Birch Street, you still don’t have connectivity to the east and west.

Ms. Heguy said based on parking, the parking that they were going to have would negate the
need for the sidewalk, as far and dropping and picking the kids up. The drop-off and pick-up will
be in the driveway and parking area.

Chairman Dalling asked for final comments from the applicants.

Ms. Heguy thanked the Commission for listening and thanked the neighbors for raising their
concerns. She said that she appreciated knowing so that they could be held to a higher standard.
She added that they really hoped to be able to be good neighbors.

Commissioner Dalling called for final public comment.

Robert Loranger, 1000 Dotta Drive, said his comment was to everyone and to the applicants. Mr.
Heguy made a comment about how they got to this point without having any feedback. Mr.
Loranger wanted to say that one of the things with doing something like this in a residential
neighborhood is that the person and the people that have the passionate drive need to be
passionately, and actively seeking buy in from the surrounding property owners, and people who
may be impacted. You’ve got to sell it and going forward you need to be interactive with the
neighborhood. That’s how things progress and how you get full backing from a community.

Ms. Heguy agreed with Mr. Loranger about being proactive and including the neighbors. That
was something they commented on and one of the things that the kids would like to do. In
respect to that, Ms. Heguy stated that she submitted several letters to the neighbors and tried to
give them some information. She said that she would do a better job at that, and that she



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 14 of 22

appreciated the encouragement there. She would be happy to share their goals and to help in any
way possible as a neighbor.

Scott Conley, 3724 Wright Way, wanted point out something he noticed about the number of
children per parking spot. He said Ms. Heguy might want to consider kids moving from the
elementary stage upwards. You might have to upgrade your driveway and it might be something
to think about.

Commissioner Buell said as she was doing her homework she wanted to dig into the zoning
issues related to this application. That began with the semantics of dancing around the term
“school.” That struck her as odd, because when the question came up she looked up the
accreditation for this organization. It is accredited by the International Association of Learner
Driven Schools, an organization that shares employees with Acton Academy. The issue
Commissioner Buell had there wasn’t so much any potential conflict of interest, it is more that
the accrediting body refers to these as schools. She looked at medium density residential
neighborhoods, and common best practices related to this. What you wind up with is schools,
private or otherwise, within residences tend to be allowed with up to 10 students. This has 24
students. That is a notably higher number than standard. With that in mind and trying to avoid
the term school, Commissioner Buell stated that she could not vote for this Conditional Use
Permit.

Chairman Dalling asked Ms. Heguy if 24 students was her maximum and that she wasn’t going
to be taking any more. (Correct) He asked what happens if the kids keep coming and reach high
school and driving age.

Ms. Heguy said that would be up to their parents. At this point, they are serving elementary, and
are focusing on that age group. Their home schooling journey is up to their parents.

Chairman Dalling said the problem is sometimes things are easy and we just stay where we are.
It could be an issue in the future when the kids start driving.

Mr. Wilkinson thought it would be appropriate if the Planning Commission looked at this
application and with all the public comment that they’ve heard, that they determined that this
Conditional Use Permit would be limited to a certain age of children. If the applicant was in
agreement with that, it is probably a logical discussion to have.

Chairman Dalling said maybe Kindergarten through 8th Grade. He asked how everyone felt about
that.

Ms. Heguy said that sounded good.

Chairman Dalling said he wondered, although it’s not legal and he shouldn’t advocate for it, if
they just had the kids show up three days a week non-permitted. He said he shouldn’t say that,
but it would have saved them a little bit. Chairman Dalling said he liked the K though 8
condition. He didn’t think anyone wanted extras in their neighborhood, so it’s hard to not listen
to the people. It’s always a bad thing when the whole neighborhood shows up and voices their
opinion. He thought the Commission appreciated the opinions in the end, both pro and con.



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 15 of 22

Commissioner Hooiman felt like the public concern that was voiced tonight could have been met
with some clear communication on the applicant’s part, and it wouldn’t have been so hard met.
There were a lot of people here that were frustrated with the process. She stated that she saw
their concerns, and she saw where the applicant was coming from. Commissioner Hooiman said
her struggle was that the community that the applicant was going into doesn’t support the
application.

***Motion: Deny Conditional Use Permit 3-20.

Moved by Evi Buell, None seconded.

*With no second the motion died.

Commissioner Beck wanted to echo Commissioner Hooiman’s statement. The problem he was
having was when you get that many people that show up.  It’s tough when most of the neighbors
show up and they’re against the project. Commissioner Beck said his main concern was that they
had a lot of people that were against it.

Mr. Heguy thought the connotation of having a school in the neighborhood was terrifying. He
said it’s not that, it is a Conditional Use Permit to have a few kids meet three times a week. He
felt the footprint would be minimal and it fits within the City Codes, and they were willing to
make the appropriate upgrades. Mr. Heguy didn’t think it was going to be a detriment to the
neighborhood.

Chairman Dalling said he was in the same spot, he could see both sides. It is a small learning
hub, a school, and it’s in someone’s neighborhood.

Commissioner Miller asked if there was an option for the Commission to table the item and see
if the applicant can convince their neighbors to go along with this. He asked if there was a
precedent for that.

Chairman Dalling said they could do that. The problem is that it wouldn’t be fair to the public
who came out. They would have to come back again. He asked if there was a way they could
make the decision at the end of the night.

Mr. Wilkinson suggested that Chairman Dalling entertain other motions before they move on.

Chairman Dalling asked for any other motions.

***Motion: Table this and see if the applicant can convince their neighbors to get on
board.

Moved by Gratton Miller, None seconded.

*With no second the motion died.



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 16 of 22

Mr. Wilkinson wanted to remind the applicant, public, and Planning Commission of the appeal
process. Any party could take this to the City Council on an appeal. Whatever is decided tonight,
the public and/or the applicant would have recourse before the City Council.

***Motion: Deny Conditional Use Permit No. 3-20.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Stefan Beck.

*Motion passed (4-2, Commissioners Dalling and Hooiman voted no).

6. Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 3-20, filed by Real
Estate Pro, LLC, to allow required off street parking to be located within the interior
side yard setback for each dwelling unit proposed to occupy a series of contiguous
lots in a R (Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential) Zoning District, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the southwest side of Fir Street, between
2nd Street and 3rd Street. (APNs 001-096-010 through 001-096-015)

Jaime Alvarado, 225 Fir Street, explained that he and his wife have lived in their home since July
2001. All those years they have enjoyed the tranquility and peace of mind of the streets. They
have serious concerns now of losing that. They were made aware that they are planning to build
six little tiny homes. Mr. Alvarado said they would not be in opposition to two or three homes,
but are opposed to six dwellings. There are parking issues along with other concerns. If the
dwellings will be rentals, Mr. Alvarado had the following questions: Will there be someone to
submit the roll of a rental property management? If so, will there be a background search
conducted on the potential renters? They know their neighbors, and there is not one convicted
criminal living across the street. He saw it appropriate that the said requirements remain as it is,
and that the Department uphold their own requirements. They are requesting that the petition for
Variance No. 3-20 be denied. The Real Estate Pro, LLC should be required to follow the City
requirements.

Jeanne Goss, 313 Fir Street, said she was curious about the variance with the adding the parking,
and worried about defendable space. If they are going to be adding parking to the alleyway, that
is the main drainage through the area, so will they be upgrading the current alleyway. Right now,
the water kind of flows through there, but not always. If that is going to become an actual street,
then there will need to be improvements made to that. With additional homes, does that mean the
City will put up stop signs in that area? Will the traffic patterns be changing? She was also
wondering if they gave parking that close to a home, if they would need a curb, so they wouldn’t
run into their house. She was wondering what the exact plans were.

Chairman Dalling said he knew this was a terrible alley for standing water. He asked Mr.
Wilkinson if the developer would be required to do a new complete alley. Chairman Dalling felt
like that should be required.

Ms. Laughlin explained that she would address some of that in her presentation. With the
Building Department Permit Application, there will be a site permit and a Building Permit for
each of the residences, and Staff will be looking at a grading permit to show how the lots will



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 17 of 22

drain. There are Code requirements that will have to be followed. If that requires that they have
to do some work in alley, staff can require that.

Chairman Dalling felt like it would be required, since there are six lots.

Ms. Laughlin explained that this variance was addressing a key element regarding the parking; it
is not addressed to how the property is developed. Staff has not seen the Building Permit set, so
we don’t have information on how they plan to grade the lots.

Mr. Wilkinson explained that the properties drain somewhere today. When the developers get in
there and do their Site Plan, they are going to have to show where those properties will drain to
after development. Let’s assume that they do not drain to the alley and they give the City a site
plan that shows that they want to put their drainage to alley. Staff could determine at that time
whether they will have an impact beyond their frontage. Typically, we are looking at just
frontage improvements with these type of developments.

Chairman Dalling thought it was more complicated because they are actually that alley is going
to be part of their driveway.

Mr. Wilkinson said typically, when you park in the back the City likes to see the drainage go to
the right-of-way, and alleys are right-of-ways in these areas. If there are drainage problems in
that alley, we can always require that the drainage report out to the street area. Mr. Wilkinson
thought it was an issue that is easily addressed at the time that a site plan is submitted.

Ms. Goss asked about updating the sewer. She said that the sewer system in the tree streets is
bad. If there will be extra strain on that, it is another thing that needs to be considered.

Mr. Wilkinson explained that there are lots of record that have an implied right to hook onto the
City’s utility systems. If there are some deficiencies in the City water or sewer in that area, that
may be something that would be addressed as a result of this. Mr. Wilkinson said he wasn’t sure
what issues may be present in the area. It is something that the Utility Department would be
aware of. They are involved in the plan review and approval process.

Ms. Laughlin went through City of Elko Staff Report dated July 20, 2020. Staff recommended
approval with the findings and conditions listed in the staff report.

Ms. Rambo had no comments or concerns.

Ms. Winrod had no comments.

Ms. Laughlin stated that the Engineering Department and the City Manager’s Office
recommended approval as presented by staff.

Mr. Alvarado asked which map zoning was being used from 1976.

Chairman Dalling explained that these were old lots that have been around since before the 20’s.



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 18 of 22

Mr. Alvarado said when he first bought is house it was explained to him that there were only two
parcels there. He didn’t know how there is now six parcels.

Chairman Dalling said there always had been six. They were never legally put together.

Mr. Alvarado asked if the homes that are going to be built would take value away from the
surrounding homes, or if they would improve the values.

Chairman Dalling didn’t think anyone had a crystal ball to tell for sure. He said they might do ok
with property values, because there isn’t a lot of new construction on the tree streets.

Commissioner Buell thought the big concern was the condition of alley, accessibility, and whose
responsibility it is to make the improvements. She was concerned about the status of existing
infrastructure.

Chairman Dalling wished they had drawings.

***Motion: Conditionally Approve Variance No. 3-20 subject to the conditions in the City
of Elko Staff Report dated July 20, 2020, listed as follows:

1. Variance 3-20 from Elko City Code section 3-2-17(D)(2)(a) is for approval of
required off street parking in interior side yard setback with access from the alley.

2. Commencement within one year and completion within eighteen (18) months.
3. Conformance to plans approved as a part of the variance.
4. Subject to review in two (2) years if determined necessary by the planning

commission.

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the motion were the proposed variance is in
conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan is consistent with existing
land uses in the immediate vicinity. The proposed variance is consistent with the
Transportation Component of the Master Plan. The property is not located within the
Redevelopment Area and consideration of the plan is not required. The proposed variance
is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan. The proposed development as a
single family residence conforms to Section 3-2-4 of City Code. A single lot or parcel of
land of record in the office of the county recorder as of the effective date of the city
subdivision ordinance (December 9, 1975), and which does not meet a buildable lot for one
single-family dwelling. Therefore, the minimum lot width of 60’ and lot area of 5,000 sq. ft.
is not required based on this exception. The proposed development is in conformance with
Elko City Code 3-2-5(G) for the principal permitted use of a single family residence. The
proposed development does not conform to Section 3-2-17 of City Code. A Variance for the
parking in the interior side yard setback would be required to be approved for the
proposed development to be in conformance. In accordance with Section 3-2-22, the
applicant has demonstrated that the hardship is the narrow lots created by File #5 and the
required width of 18’ for the 2 off street parking. In accordance with Section 3-2-22, the
applicant has demonstrated that the property has unique circumstances based on the fact
that the lots are narrow and the width of 25’ minus the 18’ parking required is less that the
required interior side yard setbacks. Granting of the variance will not result in material
damage or prejudice to other properties in the vicinity. This finding is based on other



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 19 of 22

similar properties within City of Elko, which were built within the last 15 years. Granting
of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the zoning ordinance.
Single Family is listed as a principal use in the underlying zone. Granting of the variance
will not impair natural resources. The parcel is not located within a designated Special
Flood Hazard Area.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Stefan Beck.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

2. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone No.
2-20, filed by the City of Elko, for a change in zoning from AG (General
Agriculture) to PQP (Public, Quasi-Public) Zoning District, approximately 38.09
acres of property, to allow for the proposed development of a veterans cemetery and
other future public uses, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is generally located north and south of Rocky Road,
approximately 520’ west of N. 5th Street. (APN 001-01A-012)

Ms. Laughlin went through the City of Elko Staff Report dated July 20, 2020. Staff
recommended approval with the findings in the Staff Report. She added that the City Manager’s
office recommended approval as presented by staff.

Ms. Rambo and Ms. Winrod had no comments.

Scott Conley, 3724 Wright Way, said his property was right across from the area. He fully
supported making a veterans cemetery. There was one thing he was confused on. He stated that
“other future public uses” was very vague. He knew there was talk about putting a school up
there, which he also supported. He hoped that with whatever the future public use is that we
consider the roads, especially if it is a school. It is a nightmare on Jennings at 3:30 p.m. His
children attend Mountain View, and he parks several blocks away and walks to the school
because it is a nightmare for driving. He encouraged the City and the Elko Planning Commission
to at least take public parking into account whatever is done.

Ms. Laughlin explained that there was a parcel map that was approved with some roadway
dedication. The School District is off the table as far as the purchase of the property, because
they would have needed all 38 acres to provide for their school and the VA is going through the
process to purchase 15 acres in the center. The remaining Parcel A, the City of Elko is
entertaining maintaining that for our own cemetery use. There are two more parcels, one above
Rocky Road and one below. It would be limited to what could go on those two parcels.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a resolution which
approves Rezone No. 2-20.

Commissioner Miller’s findings to support the motion were the proposed zone district is
not in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. Master Plan
Amendment 2-20 has been initiated and with approval, it will bring the zone amendment
into conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component. The proposed zone district



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 20 of 22

is compatible with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan and is consistent with
the future transportation infrastructure. The property is not located within the
Redevelopment Area. The proposed zone district and resultant land use is in conformance
with City Wellhead Protection Plan. The proposed zone district is in conformance with
Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B). The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko
City Code 3-2-8. The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21. The
proposed zone district is not located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).
Development under the proposed zone district twill not adversely impact natural systems,
or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, flood plains etc., or pose a
danger to human health and safety.

Moved by Gratton Miller, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

*Chairman Dalling called for a five-minute break.

3. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone No.
3-20, filed by Elko Institute for Academic Achievement, for a change in zoning from
CT (Commercial Transitional) to PQP (Public, Quasi-Public) Zoning District,
approximately 11.38 acres of property, to allow for the development of a school, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is generally located on the northeast corner of the intersection
of College Avenue and Ruby Vista Drive. (APN 001-620-058)

***Motion: Table Item No. I.A.3.

Moved by Gratton Miller, Seconded by Evi Buell.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

4. Review, consideration, and possible adoption of Resolution 2-20, containing
amendments to the City of Elko Master Plan, specifically amending: 1) the Proposed
Future Land Use Plan Atlas Map 8 on six parcels of land located on S. 5th Street
generally between Carlin Court and S. 9th Street; 2) the Land Use Section to add RO
(Residential Office) as a corresponding zoning under the Downtown Mixed-Use land
use designation; and 3) the Proposed Future Land Use Plan Atlas Map 8 on one
parcel located at the western terminus of Rocky Road, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Planning Commission reviewed and initiated the amendment to the City of Elko
Master Plan at its July 7, 2020 meeting.

Ms. Rambo explained at the Planning Commission’s last meeting on July 7 th they initiated this
amendment to make two make changes to Atlas Map 8 and one change to the text of the Master
Plan to clean up some areas that needed to be changed based on current projects, or cleaning up



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 21 of 22

stuff from the past.  Nothing has changed since the initiation. The Planning Commission has the
resolution that needs to be forwarded on to City Council in order to get this process underway.

***Motion: Adopt Resolution 2-20, containing amendments to the City of Elko Master
Plan; directing that an attested copy of the foregoing parts, amendments, extensions of
and/or additions to the Elko City Master Plan be certified to the City Council; further
directing that an attested copy of this Commission’s report on the proposed changes and
additions shall have be filed with the City Council; and recommending to City Council to
adopt said amendments by resolution.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Gratton Miller.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

B. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

1. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Vacation
No. 2-20, filed by Real Estate Pro, LLC, for the vacation of the southeasterly portion
of Fir Street abutting APNs 001-096-010 through 001-096-015, consisting of an area
approximately 1,500 sq. ft., and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The property owner is proposing to develop the six lots with single family homes
and would like to vacate any excess right-of-way. City Council accepted the petition
for the vacation on July 14, 2020.

Ms. Laughlin went through the City of Elko Staff Report dated July 20, 2020. Staff
recommended approval with the findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report.

There were no other comments or concerns from any members of Staff.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a resolution, which
conditionally approves Vacation No., 2-20, subject to the conditions listed in the City of
Elko Staff Report dated July 20, 2020, listed as follows:

1. Approved conditions are to be included in the Resolution.

2. The applicant is responsible for all costs associated with the recordation of the
vacation.

3. Written response from all non-City utilities is on file with the City of Elko with regard
to the vacation in accordance with NRS 278.480(6) before the order is recorded.

4. Required public improvements be completed within one (1) year from date of
approval by the City Council of vacation 2-20.

5. The vacation will not be recorded until public improvements have been completed
and accepted by City of Elko staff.



August 4, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 22 of 22

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the motion were the proposed vacation is in
conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Land Use Component. The proposed
vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Transportation Component.
The proposed vacation is in conformance with NRS 278.479 to 480, inclusive. The proposed
vacation is in conformance with City Code 3-2-5(E) and 8-7.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

II. REPORTS

A. Summary of City Council Actions.

Ms. Laughlin said she didn’t have much to report. There hasn’t been a Redevelopment
Advisory Committee Meeting or a Redevelopment Agency Meeting for some time. We are
hoping to have one sometime in the first part of September. It does look like the Planning
Commission Meeting for September will be back to a GoToMeeting.

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.

C. Professional articles, publications, etc.

1. Zoning Bulletin

D. Miscellaneous Elko County

E. Training

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Jeff Dalling, Chairman Tera Hooiman, Secretary

























Agenda Item # I.A.1.  

Created on 08/18/2020  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Title: Review and consideration of Tentative Map 6-20, filed by Legion Construction 

and Development, LLC for the development of a subdivision entitled Jarbidge 

Estates involving the proposed division of approximately 2.16 acres of property into 

18 lots for residential development and 1 common lot within the R (Single-Family 

and Multiple-Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  September 1, 2020 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

4. Time Required: 20 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: Subject property is located on the west side of N 5th Street 

at the intersection of Rolling Hills Drive.  (APN 001-610-093) 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application and Staff Report 

 
8. Recommended Motion: Recommend that the City Council conditionally approve 

Tentative Map 6-20 based on facts, findings, and conditions as presented in Staff 

Report dated August 18, 2020. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated August 18, 2020 
 

10. Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Legion Construction and Development, LLC 

Attn: John Smales 

599 Shadybrook Drive 

Spring Creek, NV 89815 

 

Shanks Engineering 

Attn: Mike Shanks 

982 Wolf Creek Drive 

Spring Creek, NV 89815 





Page 1 of 15

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: August 18, 2019
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: September 1, 2020
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.1.
APPLICATION NUMBER: Tentative Map 6-20
APPLICANT: Legion Construction and Development, LLC
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Jarbidge Estates

A Tentative Map for the proposed division of approximately 2.16 acres of property into 18
townhouse lots for residential development and 1 common lot within an A (General
Agriculture) Zoning District.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated
in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Tentative Map 06-20
Jarbidge Estates

Page 2 of 15

SUMMARY NARRATIVE

The proposed subdivision is a townhome subdivision located on the east side of N 5th Street at
the intersection of Rolling Hills Drive.  The 2.16-acre parcel in question would be divided into
18 residential lots and one common lot to be controlled by a Homeowner’s Association.  The
existing grading of the parcel has been incorporated into the subdivision’s design wherever
possible. Water and sewer service will be extended and connected to existing City infrastructure.

A Slope Analysis was completed, which showed the average slope of the property to be 5.2%.
Section 3-2-28 states that hillside development standards and regulations are required for site
with an average slope of 15% or greater.

The proposed Tentative Map conforms with all city documents, plans, and ordinances.  In
addition, all required findings can be made in the affirmative.  A Modification of Standards is
required for four of the five lots to accommodate the smaller lot widths around the bulb of the
cul-de-sac, which is included as part of this approval.

Several conditions of approval have been added at the end of this report for modifications of the
subdivision map to be made before moving forward to final approval by the City Council.

TECHNICAL INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-610-093

PARCEL SIZE: 2.16 Acres

EXISTING ZONING: (A) General Agriculture

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:
 North: A (General Agriculture) / Vacant
 South: R (Single and Multiple Residential) / Developed
 East: R (Single and Multiple Residential) / Vacant
 West: R (Single and Multiple Residential) / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is an undeveloped agricultural parcel.
 The site abuts previous residential development to the west, a church to the south, and

vacant land to the north and east.
 The parcel has an average slope of 5.2%.  The existing slope is incorporated into the



Tentative Map 06-20
Jarbidge Estates

Page 3 of 15

design of the common lot where possible.
 The property will be accessed from N 5th Street.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer

Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential Report –
November 2012

 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(E) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential

District
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(G) Residential Zoning Districts Area, Setback, and

Height
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Zoning – Chapter 3 Subdivisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management
 City of Elko Public Ways and Property – Title 9, Chapter 8 Post Construction Runoff

Control and Water Quality Management

BACKGROUND:
1. The property owner and applicant is Legion Construction and Development, LLC.
2. The subdivision is located on APN 001-610-093.
3. The property is undeveloped.
4. The proposed subdivision consists of 18 townhouse lots and 1 common lot.
5. The total subdivided area is approximately 2.16 acres.
6. The proposed density is 8.80 units per acre.
7. No phasing is proposed as part of this subdivision.
8. There are no new roads or dedications offered as part of the project.
9. The property is located on the east side of N 5th Street approximately 450 feet north of

Dakota Drive.
10. Stage 1 meetings for the proposed subdivision were held on May 13, 2020, June 10,

2020, and July 1, 2020.

MASTER PLAN

Land Use:

1. The land use is shown as Residential Medium Density.  Medium Density is identified as
having a density of 5-8 units per acre.

2. Single Family and Multiple Family Residential (R) zoning is not listed as a
corresponding district for the Medium Density Designation in the Master Plan.
Therefore, a Change of Zone is required to bring this parcel into conformance with the
Master Plan.  The needed Change of Zone application has been submitted to the City
Planning Department and should be approved and in place prior to the development of
this Tentative Map.

3. The listed Goal of the Land Use Component states: “Promote orderly, sustainable growth
and efficient land use to improve quality of life and ensure new development meets the



Tentative Map 06-20
Jarbidge Estates

Page 4 of 15

needs of all residents and visitors.”
4. Objective 1 under the Land Use component of the Master Plan states: “Promote a diverse

mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of lifestyles, incomes, and age
groups.”

a. Best Practice 1.1 – The proposed subdivision meets several of the methods
described to achieve a diverse mix of single family homes in the community.

b. Best Practice 1.3 – The location of the proposed subdivision appears to support
the City striving for a blended community by providing a mix of housing types in
the neighborhood and is supported by existing infrastructure.

5. Objective 8 of the Land Use component of the Master Plan states: “Ensure that new
development does not negatively impact County-wide natural systems or public/federal
lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains, etc. or pose a danger to human
health and safety.”  Staff believes there will be no negative impacts to natural systems
and no issue with regard to human health and safety.

Upon approval of the associated Change of Zone, the proposed subdivision and development is
in conformance with the Land Use component of the Master Plan.

Transportation:

1. The project will be accessed from N 5th Street.
2. This portion of N 5th Street is classified as a Minor Arterial road with a Regional

Roadway overlay.
3. The interior circulation of the project will be provided by a private driveway.
4. The Master Plan requires Minor Arterial roads to have 80 feet of right-of-way.
5. N 5th Street has 80 feet of right-of-way. No further dedications are required.
6. Upon full buildout, the proposed subdivision is expected to generate approximately 105

additional Average Daily Trips based on 5.81 trips/townhome (ITE Trip Generation, 10th

Edition).

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Transportation
component of the Master Plan.

ELKO AIRPORT MASTER PLAN:

The proposed subdivision and development does not conflict with the Airport Master Plan.

CITY OF ELKO DEVELOPMENT FEASIBILITY, LAND USE, WATER
INFRASTRUCTURE, SANITARY SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE, TRANSPORTATION
INFRASTRUCTURE, AND ANNEXATION POTENTIAL REPORT – NOVEMBER
2012:

The proposed subdivision does not conflict with the City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land
Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and
Annexation Potential Report – November 2012.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.



Tentative Map 06-20
Jarbidge Estates

Page 5 of 15

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

The property is not located within a capture zone for any City of Elko wells. Development of the
site is required to be connected to a programmed sewer system and all street drainage will be
directed to a storm sewer system.

SECTION 3-3-5 TENTATIVE MAP STAGE (STAGE II):

Tentative Map Approval 3-3-5(E)(2)(a)-(k) – Requires the following findings:

a. Environmental and health laws and regulations concerning water and air pollution, the
disposal of solid waste, facilities to supply water, community or pubic sewage disposal,
and, where applicable, individual systems for sewage disposal.

 The proposed subdivision will be connected to the city’s water supply system,
programmed sewer system and is required to be in compliance with all applicable
federal, state, and local requirements.

b. The availability of water which meets applicable health standards and is sufficient in
quantity for the reasonably foreseeable needs of the subdivision.

 The City of Elko Engineering Department is required to model the anticipated
water consumption of the subdivision.  The City of Elko Utility Department will
be required to submit a “Tentative Will-Serve Letter” to the State of Nevada.  The
water modeling requires an update to reflect the increased number of lots.
Current City-wide annual water usage is approximately 50% of the total allocated
water rights.

 City of Elko currently has excess pumping capacity of 3,081 gallons per minute.
Sufficient infrastructure and pumping capacity exists to provide the required
water volume to serve the proposed subdivision and development.

 The Developer will extend properly sized infrastructure as required for
development of the property.

 The proposed subdivision and development will not create an unreasonable
burden on the existing water supply.

c. The availability and accessibility of utilities.
 Utilities are available in the immediate area and can be extended for the proposed

development.

d. The availability and accessibility of public services such as schools, police protection,
transportation, recreation, and parks.

 Schools, fire and police, and recreational services are available throughout the
community.

e. Conformity with the zoning ordinance and the City’s Master Plan, except that if any
existing zoning ordinance is inconsistent with the City’s Master Plan, the zoning
ordinance takes precedence.

 The Master Plan Land Use Map shows the area as Medium Density Residential.
The proposed subdivision and development have been designed in accordance
with the Single Family and Multiple Family Residential (R) zone.



Tentative Map 06-20
Jarbidge Estates

Page 6 of 15

 The result is a density of 8.8 units per acre, which is slightly over the maximum
density of 8 units per acre specified in the Master Plan. However, this slight
overage does not result in a site plan where minimum development standards
cannot be met.

 The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the City’s Master Plan.  With
the approval of the associated Rezone application, the subdivision will be in
conformance with the Zoning Ordinance.

f. General conformity with the City’s Master Plan of streets and highways.
 The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component

of the Master Plan.

g. The effect of the proposed subdivision on existing public streets and the need for new
streets or highways to serve the subdivision.

 The proposed subdivision and development will add approximately 105 Average
Daily Trips to N 5th Street.  Based on the threshold of 1,000 ADT referenced in
the Master Plan, a traffic study is not required with this subdivision.

 The proposed subdivision and development will not cause unreasonable traffic
congestion or unsafe conditions with respect to existing or proposed streets.

h. Physical characteristics of the land, such as floodplain, slope, and soil.
 The proposed subdivision and subsequent development of the property is

expected to reduce the potential for erosion in the immediate area.  Development
of the property will not cause unreasonable soil erosion.

 A hydrology report is required with the Final Map and Construction Plan
submittal.

 The proposed subdivision and development is not expected to result in
unreasonable erosion or reduction in the water holding capacity of the land
thereby creating a dangerous or unhealthy condition.

i. The recommendations and comments and those entities and persons reviewing the
Tentative Map pursuant to this Chapter and NRS 278.330 to 278.3485, inclusive.

j. The availability and accessibility of fire protection, including, but not limited to, the
availability and accessibility of water and services for the prevention and containment of
fires, including fires in wild lands.

k. The submission by the subdivider of an affidavit stating that the subdivider will make
provision for payment of the tax imposed by Chapter 375 of NRS and for compliance
with the disclosure and recording requirements of Subsection 5 of NRS 598.0923, if
applicable, by the subdivider or any successor in interest.

There are no obvious considerations or concerns which indicate the proposed subdivision would
not be in conformance with all applicable provisions.



Tentative Map 06-20
Jarbidge Estates

Page 7 of 15

SECTION 3-3-6 CONTENT AND FORMAT OF TENTATIVE MAP SUBMITTAL:

A. Form and Scale – The Tentative Map conforms to the required size and form
specifications.

B. Identification Data
1. The subdivision name, location, and section/township/range, with bearing to a

section corner or quarter-section corner, is shown.
2. The name, address, email, and telephone number of the subdivider is shown.
3. The engineer’s name, address, and telephone number are shown.
4. The scale is shown on all sheets.
5. The north arrow is shown on all sheets.
6. The date of initial preparation and dates of any subsequent revisions are shown.
7. A location map is provided.
8. A legal description is provided.

C. Physical Conditions
1. The existing topography of the site is shown.
2. Existing drainage conditions are shown on the Tentative Map.
3. There are no Special Flood Hazards within the proposed subdivision.
4. All roadways, easements, and corporate limits are shown within and adjacent to

the subdivision.
5. Dimensions of all subdivision boundaries are shown on the Tentative Map.
6. Gross and net acreage of the subdivision is shown.

D. Recorded Map Information:
1. Any previously recorded maps for adjacent properties is labeled on the Tentative

Map.
E. Existing Zoning:

1. The zoning is shown for the subject property.  Zoning classifications for adjacent
properties are also shown on the Tentative Map.

F. Proposed Improvements and Other Features Data:
1. The proposed interior driveway layout is shown. None of the streets are named or

proposed for dedication.  The grades of the proposed streets are shown on the
grading plan.  The continuation of roadways is not required of the proposed
subdivision.

2. The lot layout with consecutively numbered lots is shown.  The area and
dimensions for each lot are shown, as well as the total number of lots.

3. Typical easements will be required along all lot lines.
4. No street dedications are proposed.
5. A Conditional Use Permit is required to allow for the use of townhouses in the

Single Family and Multiple Family Residential zoning.  This application has been
submitted and is being processed by the Planning Department.

G. Proposed Deed Restrictions:
1. Proposed CC&R’s for the subdivision are in development.  A condition of

approval has been included to require their submitted prior to City Council
approval.

H. Preliminary Grading Plan:
1. A grading plan has been provided showing estimated cut and fill information.

I. NPDES Permit Compliance:



Tentative Map 06-20
Jarbidge Estates

Page 8 of 15

1. The subdivider will be required to comply with the City of Elko’s storm water
regulations.

J. Proposed Utility Methods and Requirements:
1. The proposed sewage disposal infrastructure connecting to the City’s

infrastructure is shown on the utility plan.
2. The proposed water supply infrastructure connecting to the City’s infrastructure is

shown on the utility plan.
3. The Tentative Map shows storm water infrastructure.  A hydrology report will be

required with the Final Map and Construction Plan submittal.
4. Utilities in addition to City utilities must be provided with construction plans

required for Final Map submittal.
5. The City will not require a traffic impact study for the proposed subdivision.

SECTION 3-3-9 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBDIVISION DESIGN:

A. Conformance with Master Plan: The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the
Master Plan objectives for density and applicable zoning.

B. Public Facility Sites: No public facility sites are proposed for dedication.
C. Land Suitability: The area proposed for subdivision is suitable for the proposed

development based on the findings in this report.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-9 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-10 STREET LOCATION AND ARRANGEMENT:

A. Conformance with Plan: The proposed subdivision utilizes an existing section of N 5th

Street for access.
B. Layout: Street continuation through the proposed subdivision is not required.
C. Extensions: No extensions are required as part of the proposed subdivision.
D. Arrangement of Residential Streets: The arrangement of streets within the subdivision

prevents outside traffic from utilizing the neighborhood for cut-through traffic.
E. Protection of Residential Properties: There are no lots that have frontage or access from

arterial streets.  A note has been required on the Tentative Map that no lots shall front on
N 5th Street, a Minor Arterial.

F. Parallel Streets: Consideration of street location is not required.
G. Topography: The residential driveway has been designated to address the topography of

the area.
H. Alleys: No alleys are proposed.
I. Half-Streets: There are no half-streets proposed.
J. Dead-End Streets: There are no public dead-end streets proposed. The private roads,

while technically considered as dead-end streets, are designed to allow for appropriate
turnaround areas for traffic, as well as fire trucks.

K. Intersection Design: The proposed intersection with N 5th Street is code compliant.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-10 of City code.



Tentative Map 06-20
Jarbidge Estates

Page 9 of 15

SECTION 3-3-11 STREET DESIGN:

A. Required Right-of-Way Widths: N 5th Street currently consists of the required 80 feet of
right-of-way.  No new public streets are proposed.

B. Street Grades: The proposed street grades are code compliant.
C. Vertical Curves: The vertical curves are code compliant.
D. Horizontal Alignment: The horizontal alignment of the driveway and intersection are

code compliant.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-11 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-12 BLOCK DESIGN:

A. Maximum Length of Blocks: The block design does not exceed the maximum length of a
block and maximizes block length.  Turnaround areas have been provided at the end of
each driveway to allow for safe vehicular movement.

B. Sidewalks or Pedestrian ways: The proposed sidewalks on N 5th Street are code
compliant.  No other public pedestrian ways are proposed.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-12 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-13 LOT PLANNING:

A. Lot Width, Depth, and Area: The lots are in conformance with the specifications
stipulated for the zoning in Elko City Code 3-2-5.

B. Building Setback: The proposed subdivision, when developed, can meet setback
requirements as stipulated in Elko City Code 3-2-5(G).

C. Side Lot Lines: The side lot lines are generally at right angles to the interior driveway.
Deviations occur on inside curves and are appropriate.

D. Accessibility: The development abuts a public street. All residents will have access to N
5th Street.

E. Prohibitions: No units shall have direct access to N 5th Street.  All access is to be through
the proposed driveway.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-13 of City code with the note
added as part of section E (above).

SECTION 3-3-14 EASEMENT PLANNING:

A. Utility Easements: Typical side and rear yard easements are already in place. Easements
exist for public utilities and power lines that run across the center of the property. The
easement along the eastern property line for an existing water main is being widened to
match the route of the main.  A new access easement is provided to allow City staff to
access the new utility and drainage infrastructure in the southeast corner.

B. Underground Utilities: Overhead utilities are not typically allowed within new
subdivisions. However, the power lines crossing the middle of the parcel are part of a



Tentative Map 06-20
Jarbidge Estates

Page 10 of 15

larger main line that would be difficult to place underground, if NV Energy was willing
to do that.

C. Lots Facing Curvilinear Streets: None of the proposed lots face curvilinear streets.
D. Public Drainage Easement: Typical side and rear yard easements for drainage and/or

utilities are already in place.
E. Easement Land Not Considered and Considered in Minimum Lot Area Calculation: All

calculations appear to be correct.
F. Lots Backing Onto Arterial Streets: There are no lots proposed which back onto an

arterial street.
G. Water and Sewer Lines: The utilities are shown in the streets, within existing side or rear

easements, and in the proposed driveway access. Sanitary sewer will tie into the existing
city infrastructure via an existing easement from the southeast corner of the parcel
running south through the adjacent parcel.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-14 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-15 STREET NAMING:

No new streets are proposed as part of this project.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-15 of City code.

SECTIONS 3-3-16 STREET LIGHT DESIGN STANDARDS:

Conformance is required with the submittal of construction plans.

SECTION 3-3-17 through 3-3-22 (inclusive):

All referenced sections are applicable to Final Map submission, approval, and construction plans.

SECTION 3-3-23 PARK LAND DEDICATIONS:

There is no offer of dedication for park lands.

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS:

Section 3-2-3(C)(1) of City code specifies use restrictions.  The following use restrictions shall
apply:

Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as “principal uses
permitted” in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as principal uses; all other uses shall
be prohibited as principal uses.

Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or conditional
uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.



Tentative Map 06-20
Jarbidge Estates

Page 11 of 15

Section 3-2-3(D) states that: “No land may be used or structure erected where the land is held by
the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason of flooding,
concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, extreme topography,
low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features likely to be harmful to the
health, safety, and general welfare of the community.  The planning commission, in applying the
provisions of this section, shall state in writing the particular facts upon which its conclusions are
based.  The applicant shall have the right to present evidence contesting such determination to
the city council if he or she so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify, or
withdraw the determination of unsuitability.”

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-3 of City code.

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS:

1. Section 3-2-4(B) Required Conformity to District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection.

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof
shall be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this
title.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 of City code.

SECTION 3-2-5(E) R – SINGLE FAMILY AND MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL:

Section 3-2-5(E)(2) Principal Uses Permitted:

1. Adult care facility serving ten (10) or fewer.
2. Electric power substations, sewer lift stations, and water pump stations wherein service to

district residents requires location within the district.
3. Multiple-family residential units, including a duplex, triplex, or a fourplex located on a

single lot or parcel, provided area and setback requirements are met.
4. One single-family dwelling of a permanent character in a permanent location with each

dwelling unit on its own parcel of land and provided all area and setback requirements
are met.

5. Publicly owned and operated parks and recreation areas and centers.
6. Residential facility for groups of ten (10) or fewer.

With the approval of the associated Rezone, the proposed subdivision and development is in
conformance with Section 3-2-5(E)(2).  Conformance with Section 3-2-5(E) is required as the
subdivision develops.

SECTION 3-2-5(G) RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS AREA, SETBACKS, AND
HEIGHT:

1. Lot areas are shown.



Tentative Map 06-20
Jarbidge Estates

Page 12 of 15

2. Lot dimensions are shown. The lot dimensions are in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G)
of City code.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G) of City
code.

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING, AND LOADING:

1. N 5th Street is designated as a Minor Arterial in the Master Plan.  No new streets are
being proposed as part of the proposal.

2. The proposed lots are large enough to develop the required off-street parking.  Each
townhouse unit will include a two-car garage within the individual lots.  Additional guest
parking will be provided in the common lot owned and maintained by the Homeowner’s
Association.

3. The access driveway is designed to line up with the existing intersection of Rolling Hills
Drive.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-17 of City code.
Conformance with Section 3-2-17 is required as the subdivision develops.

SECTION 3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT:

The proposed subdivision and development is not located in a designated special flood hazard
area and is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City Code.

TITLE 9, CHAPTER 8 POST CONSTRUCTION RUNOFF CONTROL AND WATER
QUALTIY MANAGEMENT:

Final design of the subdivision is required to conform to the requirements of this title.  The
Tentative Map storm drain infrastructure is shown through the area.

OTHER:

The following permits will be required for the project:

1. State storm water general permit: Required submittals to the City of Elko are a plan view
showing the storm water controls, a copy of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP) and a copy of the certified confirmation letter from the Nevada Department of
Environmental Protection.

2. A Surface Area Disturbance (SAD) is required if the disturbed area is equal to or greater
than five (5) acres.  A copy of the SAD permit is required to be submitted to the City of
Elko.

3. A street cut permit from the City of Elko.
4. A grading permit from the City of Elko.
5. All other applicable permits and fees required by the City of Elko.
6. The City of Elko also requires submittal of the plans to the individual utility companies

before permits will be issued for the project.



Tentative Map 06-20
Jarbidge Estates

Page 13 of 15

FINDINGS

1. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Land Use and
Transportation components of the Master Plan.

2. The proposed subdivision and development does not conflict with the Airport Master
Plan, the City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary
Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential Report –
November 2012, or the Wellhead Protection Program.

3. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

4. A zoning amendment is required for the proposed subdivision. This application has been
submitted to the Planning Department.

5. In accordance with Section 3-3-5(E)(2), the proposed subdivision and development will
not result in undue water or air pollution based on the following:

a. There are no obvious considerations or concerns which indicate the proposed
subdivision would not be in conformance with all applicable environmental and
health laws and regulations.

b. There is adequate capacity within the City’s water supply to accommodate the
proposed subdivision.

c. The proposed subdivision and development will not create an unreasonable
burden on the existing water system.

d. There is adequate capacity at the Water Reclamation Facility to support the
proposed subdivision and development.

e. The proposed subdivision and development will be connected to the City’s
programed sanitary sewer system.  Therefore, the ability of soils to support waste
disposal does not require evaluation prior to Tentative Map approval.

f. Utilities are available in the immediate area and can be extended for the proposed
development.

g. Schools, fire and police, and recreational services are available throughout the
community.

h. The proposed subdivision and development will not cause unreasonable traffic
congestion or unsafe conditions with respect to existing or proposed streets.

i. The area is not located within a designated flood zone.  Concentrated storm water
runoff has been addressed as shown on the grading plan.

j. The proposed subdivision and development is not expected to result in
unreasonable erosion or reduction in the water-holding capacity of the land
thereby creating a dangerous or unhealthy condition.

6. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Sections 3-3-6, and 3-3-9 through 3-3-
15 of City code.

7. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-3 through
3-2-5, and 3-2-17 of City code.



Tentative Map 06-20
Jarbidge Estates

Page 14 of 15

8. The proposed subdivision and development is not located in a designated flood hazard
area and is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City code.

9. The proposed subdivision design shall conform to Title 9, Chapter 8 of City code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

Development Department:

1. Conditional Use Permit 4-20 must be approved and all conditions be met.

2. Rezone 5-20 must be approved and in place and any/all conditions be met.

3. The subdivider is to comply with all provisions of the NAC and NRS pertaining to the
proposed subdivision.

4. Tentative Map approval constitutes authorization for the subdivider to proceed with
preparation of the Final Map and associated construction plans.

5. The Tentative Map and construction plans must be approved by the Nevada Department
of Environmental Protection prior to submitting for Final Map approval to the City of
Elko.

6. Tentative Map approval does not constitute authorization to proceed with site
improvements.

7. The applicant must submit an application for Final Map within a period of four (4) years
in accordance with NRS.360(1)(a).  Approval of the Tentative Map will automatically
lapse at that time.

8. A soils report is required with Final Map submittal.

9. A hydrology report is required with Final Map submittal.

10. Final Map construction plans are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City code.

11. The subdivision design and construction shall comply with Title 9, Chapter 8 of City
code.

12. The Utility Department will issue an Intent to Serve letter upon approval of the Tentative
Map by the City Council.

13. Submit CC&Rs prior to approval by the City Council.

14. Add a note to the map restricting access to individual townhomes from N 5th Street.

Engineering Department:



Tentative Map 06-20
Jarbidge Estates

Page 15 of 15

1. Sheet T1 – Revise note 1.  Townhome parcels should not be subject to additional
easements.

2. Sheet T1 – Revise location of proposed 15-foot utility easement, to align with the sewer
and to not encroach onto the adjacent parcel.

3. Sheet T3 – Revise location of proposed hammerhead turnaround for fire, to not include
any unpaved areas or parking stalls.

4. Sheet T3 – Revise sewer design so that no proposed manhole turns the flow more than 90
degrees.  This occurs at the manhole on Dakota Drive, and possibly at the northerly end
of the existing 25-foot easement.

5. Sheet T3 – Center the proposed sewer line in the existing easement to allow adequate
room on both sides for trenching.

6. All Sheets – Signature of design professional is required on final submittal.

Fire Department:

1. Fire Department access roads shall be provided and maintained in accordance with
Sections 5-3.1.1 of the 2018 IFC.

Public Works Department:

1. All public improvements to be installed at time of development per Elko city code.





































982 Wolf Cr. Dr.,     *   Spring Creek, Nevada  89801    *    775.934.9356  *  shankseng@gmail.com 
 

 

July 21, 2020 
 
City of Elko 
1751 College Avenue 
Elko, Nevada 89801 
 
RE:  Jarbidge Estates Subdivision – N. 5th Street 

Preliminary Hydrology Calculations 
 
To whom this may concern, 
 
To support the proposed development, we are providing this summary of existing and proposed drainage 
conditions for the proposed development located on North 5th street in Elko, Nevada. The site consists of 
a 2.16-acre parcel which generally slopes from the North 5th street in a northeasterly direction. The 
proposed development will create approximately 1.0-acres of new impervious coverage including 18 
townhomes with driveways and pavement with sidewalks. It is anticipated that surface runoff flows from 
the developed areas will be conveyed via valley gutter to a 36” storage culvert with a 6” outlet located 
near the northeast corner of the parcel. 
 
We have performed calculations utilizing TR-55 methods to determine existing and proposed peak flow 
and volumes for the 10-year and 100-year storm event for proposed subdivision, by utilizing published 
precipitation and soils data. A summary is as follows: 
 

 
 
The proposed storm drain infrastructure shall be designed to capture, release no more than the pre-
development peak flow, and store excess stormwater for the 10-year storm event. It shall also be designed 
to capture and release the 100-year storm utilizing overflow outlets.  
 
Stormwater from Basin D1, and D2 will be conveyed through the proposed North Ditch with no outlet 
structure. Stormwater from Basin D3 will be conveyed through the proposed South Ditch with no outlet 
structure. Stormwater from D4 will be captured in valley gutters and conveyed to 76’ of 36” storage 
culvert and a 6” outlet structure. The outlet structure peak flow will not exceed 1.27 cfs (1.98 cfs – 0.40 
cfs – 0.31 cfs = 1.27). The outlet structure, North Ditch and South Ditch will combine to a combined ditch 
that travels from the northeast corner of the proposed subdivision to Dakato Drive. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Basin Area (ac.) CN 10-yr Peak Flow (cfs) 10-yr Volume (cf) Location Notes

P1 2.12 88 2.68 5649 Not on property Pre Pass-through
P2 2.16 82 1.98 3766 On Property Total Pre-Property Drainage
D1 1.87 88 2.36 4982 Not on Property Post Pass-Through to North Ditch
D2 0.39 84 0.40 817 On Property Contributes to North Ditch
D3 0.49 78 0.31 569 On Property Contributes to South Ditch
D4 1.35 93 2.71 4914 On Property Contributes to valley gutters
D5 0.20 98 0.48 1100 Not on Property Pass-through to North 5th Street



Preliminary Hydrology Calculations    Page 2 of 2 
 

982 Wolf Cr. Dr.,     *   Spring Creek, Nevada  89801    *    775.934.9356  *  shankseng@gmail.com 
 

This design would accomplish reducing the peak runoff rate and volume from the site to downstream 
areas.  
 
Below is a list of attachments used to develop the table above. 
 
Attachment 1 – P1 – D5 10 Year Storm Hydrograph 
Attachment 2 – North Ditch Size Calculations  
Attachment 3 – South Ditch Size Calculations 
Attachment 4 – Combined Ditch Size Calculations 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or comments. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Shanks Enterprises Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Kenneth Frary-Skalla, P.E. 
kennyskallaeng@gmail.com 
 
 



Hydrograph Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2021 Tuesday, 07 / 21 / 2020

Hyd. No. 1

P1

Hydrograph type =  SCS Runoff Peak discharge =  2.678 cfs
Storm frequency =  10 yrs Time to peak =  719 min
Time interval =  1 min Hyd. volume =  5,649 cuft
Drainage area =  2.120 ac Curve number =  88*
Basin Slope =  0.0 % Hydraulic length =  0 ft
Tc method =  TR55 Time of conc. (Tc) =  7.70 min
Total precip. =  1.73 in Distribution =  Type II
Storm duration =  24 hrs Shape factor =  484

* Composite (Area/CN) = [(1.038 x 89) + (0.440 x 98) + (0.645 x 80)] / 2.120

1

0 120 240 360 480 600 720 840 960 1080 1200 1320 1440 1560

Q (cfs)

0.00 0.00

1.00 1.00

2.00 2.00

3.00 3.00

Q (cfs)

Time (min)

P1

Hyd. No. 1 -- 10 Year

Hyd No. 1



Hydrograph Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2021 Tuesday, 07 / 21 / 2020

Hyd. No. 2

P2

Hydrograph type =  SCS Runoff Peak discharge =  1.975 cfs
Storm frequency =  10 yrs Time to peak =  717 min
Time interval =  1 min Hyd. volume =  3,766 cuft
Drainage area =  2.170 ac Curve number =  82*
Basin Slope =  0.0 % Hydraulic length =  0 ft
Tc method =  TR55 Time of conc. (Tc) =  4.30 min
Total precip. =  1.73 in Distribution =  Type II
Storm duration =  24 hrs Shape factor =  484

* Composite (Area/CN) = [(1.648 x 80) + (0.526 x 89)] / 2.170

2

0 120 240 360 480 600 720 840 960 1080 1200 1320 1440 1560

Q (cfs)

0.00 0.00

1.00 1.00

2.00 2.00

Q (cfs)

Time (min)

P2

Hyd. No. 2 -- 10 Year

Hyd No. 2



Hydrograph Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2021 Tuesday, 07 / 21 / 2020

Hyd. No. 3

D1

Hydrograph type =  SCS Runoff Peak discharge =  2.362 cfs
Storm frequency =  10 yrs Time to peak =  719 min
Time interval =  1 min Hyd. volume =  4,982 cuft
Drainage area =  1.870 ac Curve number =  88*
Basin Slope =  0.0 % Hydraulic length =  0 ft
Tc method =  TR55 Time of conc. (Tc) =  8.20 min
Total precip. =  1.73 in Distribution =  Type II
Storm duration =  24 hrs Shape factor =  484

* Composite (Area/CN) = [(1.020 x 89) + (0.280 x 98) + (0.570 x 80)] / 1.870

3

0 120 240 360 480 600 720 840 960 1080 1200 1320 1440 1560

Q (cfs)

0.00 0.00

1.00 1.00

2.00 2.00

3.00 3.00

Q (cfs)

Time (min)

D1

Hyd. No. 3 -- 10 Year

Hyd No. 3



Hydrograph Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2021 Tuesday, 07 / 21 / 2020

Hyd. No. 4

D2

Hydrograph type =  SCS Runoff Peak discharge =  0.403 cfs
Storm frequency =  10 yrs Time to peak =  718 min
Time interval =  1 min Hyd. volume =  817 cuft
Drainage area =  0.390 ac Curve number =  84*
Basin Slope =  0.0 % Hydraulic length =  0 ft
Tc method =  TR55 Time of conc. (Tc) =  6.40 min
Total precip. =  1.73 in Distribution =  Type II
Storm duration =  24 hrs Shape factor =  484

* Composite (Area/CN) = [(0.246 x 78) + (0.105 x 98) + (0.040 x 80)] / 0.390

4

0 120 240 360 480 600 720 840 960 1080 1200 1320 1440 1560

Q (cfs)

0.00 0.00

0.05 0.05

0.10 0.10

0.15 0.15

0.20 0.20

0.25 0.25

0.30 0.30

0.35 0.35

0.40 0.40

0.45 0.45

0.50 0.50

Q (cfs)

Time (min)

D2

Hyd. No. 4 -- 10 Year

Hyd No. 4



Hydrograph Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2021 Tuesday, 07 / 21 / 2020

Hyd. No. 5

D3

Hydrograph type =  SCS Runoff Peak discharge =  0.308 cfs
Storm frequency =  10 yrs Time to peak =  716 min
Time interval =  1 min Hyd. volume =  569 cuft
Drainage area =  0.490 ac Curve number =  78*
Basin Slope =  0.0 % Hydraulic length =  0 ft
Tc method =  TR55 Time of conc. (Tc) =  2.40 min
Total precip. =  1.73 in Distribution =  Type II
Storm duration =  24 hrs Shape factor =  484

* Composite (Area/CN) = [(0.486 x 78)] / 0.490

5

0 120 240 360 480 600 720 840 960 1080 1200 1320 1440 1560

Q (cfs)

0.00 0.00

0.05 0.05

0.10 0.10

0.15 0.15

0.20 0.20

0.25 0.25

0.30 0.30

0.35 0.35

0.40 0.40

0.45 0.45

0.50 0.50

Q (cfs)

Time (min)

D3

Hyd. No. 5 -- 10 Year

Hyd No. 5



Hydrograph Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2021 Tuesday, 07 / 21 / 2020

Hyd. No. 6

D4

Hydrograph type =  SCS Runoff Peak discharge =  2.712 cfs
Storm frequency =  10 yrs Time to peak =  715 min
Time interval =  1 min Hyd. volume =  4,914 cuft
Drainage area =  1.350 ac Curve number =  93*
Basin Slope =  0.0 % Hydraulic length =  0 ft
Tc method =  TR55 Time of conc. (Tc) =  3.00 min
Total precip. =  1.73 in Distribution =  Type II
Storm duration =  24 hrs Shape factor =  484

* Composite (Area/CN) = [(1.020 x 98) + (0.327 x 78)] / 1.350

6

0 120 240 360 480 600 720 840 960 1080 1200

Q (cfs)

0.00 0.00

1.00 1.00

2.00 2.00

3.00 3.00

Q (cfs)

Time (min)

D4

Hyd. No. 6 -- 10 Year

Hyd No. 6



Hydrograph Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2021 Tuesday, 07 / 21 / 2020

Hyd. No. 7

D5

Hydrograph type =  SCS Runoff Peak discharge =  0.483 cfs
Storm frequency =  10 yrs Time to peak =  717 min
Time interval =  1 min Hyd. volume =  1,100 cuft
Drainage area =  0.195 ac Curve number =  98
Basin Slope =  0.0 % Hydraulic length =  0 ft
Tc method =  TR55 Time of conc. (Tc) =  5.10 min
Total precip. =  1.73 in Distribution =  Type II
Storm duration =  24 hrs Shape factor =  484

7

0 120 240 360 480 600 720 840 960 1080 1200

Q (cfs)

0.00 0.00

0.05 0.05

0.10 0.10

0.15 0.15

0.20 0.20

0.25 0.25

0.30 0.30

0.35 0.35

0.40 0.40

0.45 0.45

0.50 0.50

Q (cfs)

Time (min)

D5

Hyd. No. 7 -- 10 Year

Hyd No. 7



Hydrograph Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2021 Tuesday, 07 / 21 / 2020

Hyd. No. 1

P1

Hydrograph type =  SCS Runoff Peak discharge =  5.349 cfs
Storm frequency =  100 yrs Time to peak =  718 min
Time interval =  1 min Hyd. volume =  11,400 cuft
Drainage area =  2.120 ac Curve number =  88*
Basin Slope =  0.0 % Hydraulic length =  0 ft
Tc method =  TR55 Time of conc. (Tc) =  7.70 min
Total precip. =  2.66 in Distribution =  Type II
Storm duration =  24 hrs Shape factor =  484

* Composite (Area/CN) = [(1.038 x 89) + (0.440 x 98) + (0.645 x 80)] / 2.120

8

0 120 240 360 480 600 720 840 960 1080 1200 1320 1440

Q (cfs)

0.00 0.00

1.00 1.00

2.00 2.00

3.00 3.00

4.00 4.00

5.00 5.00

6.00 6.00

Q (cfs)

Time (min)

P1

Hyd. No. 1 -- 100 Year

Hyd No. 1



Hydrograph Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2021 Tuesday, 07 / 21 / 2020

Hyd. No. 2

P2

Hydrograph type =  SCS Runoff Peak discharge =  4.692 cfs
Storm frequency =  100 yrs Time to peak =  717 min
Time interval =  1 min Hyd. volume =  8,799 cuft
Drainage area =  2.170 ac Curve number =  82*
Basin Slope =  0.0 % Hydraulic length =  0 ft
Tc method =  TR55 Time of conc. (Tc) =  4.30 min
Total precip. =  2.66 in Distribution =  Type II
Storm duration =  24 hrs Shape factor =  484

* Composite (Area/CN) = [(1.648 x 80) + (0.526 x 89)] / 2.170

9

0 120 240 360 480 600 720 840 960 1080 1200 1320 1440 1560

Q (cfs)

0.00 0.00

1.00 1.00

2.00 2.00

3.00 3.00

4.00 4.00

5.00 5.00

Q (cfs)

Time (min)

P2

Hyd. No. 2 -- 100 Year

Hyd No. 2



Hydrograph Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2021 Tuesday, 07 / 21 / 2020

Hyd. No. 3

D1

Hydrograph type =  SCS Runoff Peak discharge =  4.719 cfs
Storm frequency =  100 yrs Time to peak =  718 min
Time interval =  1 min Hyd. volume =  10,056 cuft
Drainage area =  1.870 ac Curve number =  88*
Basin Slope =  0.0 % Hydraulic length =  0 ft
Tc method =  TR55 Time of conc. (Tc) =  8.20 min
Total precip. =  2.66 in Distribution =  Type II
Storm duration =  24 hrs Shape factor =  484

* Composite (Area/CN) = [(1.020 x 89) + (0.280 x 98) + (0.570 x 80)] / 1.870

10

0 120 240 360 480 600 720 840 960 1080 1200 1320 1440

Q (cfs)

0.00 0.00

1.00 1.00

2.00 2.00

3.00 3.00

4.00 4.00

5.00 5.00

Q (cfs)

Time (min)

D1

Hyd. No. 3 -- 100 Year

Hyd No. 3



Hydrograph Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2021 Tuesday, 07 / 21 / 2020

Hyd. No. 4

D2

Hydrograph type =  SCS Runoff Peak discharge =  0.900 cfs
Storm frequency =  100 yrs Time to peak =  718 min
Time interval =  1 min Hyd. volume =  1,812 cuft
Drainage area =  0.390 ac Curve number =  84*
Basin Slope =  0.0 % Hydraulic length =  0 ft
Tc method =  TR55 Time of conc. (Tc) =  6.40 min
Total precip. =  2.66 in Distribution =  Type II
Storm duration =  24 hrs Shape factor =  484

* Composite (Area/CN) = [(0.246 x 78) + (0.105 x 98) + (0.040 x 80)] / 0.390

11

0 120 240 360 480 600 720 840 960 1080 1200 1320 1440 1560

Q (cfs)

0.00 0.00

0.10 0.10

0.20 0.20

0.30 0.30

0.40 0.40

0.50 0.50

0.60 0.60

0.70 0.70

0.80 0.80

0.90 0.90

1.00 1.00

Q (cfs)

Time (min)

D2

Hyd. No. 4 -- 100 Year

Hyd No. 4



Hydrograph Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2021 Tuesday, 07 / 21 / 2020

Hyd. No. 5

D3

Hydrograph type =  SCS Runoff Peak discharge =  0.857 cfs
Storm frequency =  100 yrs Time to peak =  716 min
Time interval =  1 min Hyd. volume =  1,490 cuft
Drainage area =  0.490 ac Curve number =  78*
Basin Slope =  0.0 % Hydraulic length =  0 ft
Tc method =  TR55 Time of conc. (Tc) =  2.40 min
Total precip. =  2.66 in Distribution =  Type II
Storm duration =  24 hrs Shape factor =  484

* Composite (Area/CN) = [(0.486 x 78)] / 0.490

12

0 120 240 360 480 600 720 840 960 1080 1200 1320 1440 1560

Q (cfs)

0.00 0.00

0.10 0.10

0.20 0.20

0.30 0.30

0.40 0.40

0.50 0.50

0.60 0.60

0.70 0.70

0.80 0.80

0.90 0.90

1.00 1.00

Q (cfs)

Time (min)

D3

Hyd. No. 5 -- 100 Year

Hyd No. 5



Hydrograph Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2021 Tuesday, 07 / 21 / 2020

Hyd. No. 6

D4

Hydrograph type =  SCS Runoff Peak discharge =  4.730 cfs
Storm frequency =  100 yrs Time to peak =  715 min
Time interval =  1 min Hyd. volume =  8,869 cuft
Drainage area =  1.350 ac Curve number =  93*
Basin Slope =  0.0 % Hydraulic length =  0 ft
Tc method =  TR55 Time of conc. (Tc) =  3.00 min
Total precip. =  2.66 in Distribution =  Type II
Storm duration =  24 hrs Shape factor =  484

* Composite (Area/CN) = [(1.020 x 98) + (0.327 x 78)] / 1.350

13

0 120 240 360 480 600 720 840 960 1080 1200

Q (cfs)

0.00 0.00

1.00 1.00

2.00 2.00

3.00 3.00

4.00 4.00

5.00 5.00

Q (cfs)

Time (min)

D4

Hyd. No. 6 -- 100 Year

Hyd No. 6



Hydrograph Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2021 Tuesday, 07 / 21 / 2020

Hyd. No. 7

D5

Hydrograph type =  SCS Runoff Peak discharge =  0.758 cfs
Storm frequency =  100 yrs Time to peak =  717 min
Time interval =  1 min Hyd. volume =  1,774 cuft
Drainage area =  0.195 ac Curve number =  98
Basin Slope =  0.0 % Hydraulic length =  0 ft
Tc method =  TR55 Time of conc. (Tc) =  5.10 min
Total precip. =  2.66 in Distribution =  Type II
Storm duration =  24 hrs Shape factor =  484

14

0 120 240 360 480 600 720 840 960 1080 1200

Q (cfs)

0.00 0.00

0.10 0.10

0.20 0.20

0.30 0.30

0.40 0.40

0.50 0.50

0.60 0.60

0.70 0.70

0.80 0.80

0.90 0.90

1.00 1.00

Q (cfs)

Time (min)

D5

Hyd. No. 7 -- 100 Year

Hyd No. 7



Channel Report

Hydraflow Express Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. Tuesday, Jul 21 2020

North Ditch

Triangular
Side Slopes (z:1) =  10.00, 3.00
Total Depth (ft) =  0.50

Invert Elev (ft) =  1.00
Slope (%) =  3.80
N-Value =  0.020

Calculations
Compute by: Known Q
Known Q (cfs) =  2.76

Highlighted
Depth (ft) =  0.32
Q (cfs) =  2.760
Area (sqft) =  0.67
Velocity (ft/s) =  4.15
Wetted Perim (ft) =  4.23
Crit Depth, Yc (ft) =  0.41
Top Width (ft) =  4.16
EGL (ft) =  0.59

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Elev (ft) Depth (ft)
Section

0.75 -0.25

1.00 0.00

1.25 0.25

1.50 0.50

1.75 0.75

2.00 1.00

Reach (ft)



Channel Report

Hydraflow Express Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. Tuesday, Jul 21 2020

South Ditch

Triangular
Side Slopes (z:1) =  3.00, 10.00
Total Depth (ft) =  0.50

Invert Elev (ft) =  1.00
Slope (%) =  1.00
N-Value =  0.020

Calculations
Compute by: Known Q
Known Q (cfs) =  0.31

Highlighted
Depth (ft) =  0.18
Q (cfs) =  0.310
Area (sqft) =  0.21
Velocity (ft/s) =  1.47
Wetted Perim (ft) =  2.38
Crit Depth, Yc (ft) =  0.17
Top Width (ft) =  2.34
EGL (ft) =  0.21

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Elev (ft) Depth (ft)
Section

0.75 -0.25

1.00 0.00

1.25 0.25

1.50 0.50

1.75 0.75

2.00 1.00

Reach (ft)



Channel Report

Hydraflow Express Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. Tuesday, Jul 21 2020

Combined Ditch

Triangular
Side Slopes (z:1) =  5.00, 5.00
Total Depth (ft) =  1.00

Invert Elev (ft) =  1.00
Slope (%) =  4.00
N-Value =  0.020

Calculations
Compute by: Known Q
Known Q (cfs) =  4.34

Highlighted
Depth (ft) =  0.42
Q (cfs) =  4.340
Area (sqft) =  0.88
Velocity (ft/s) =  4.92
Wetted Perim (ft) =  4.28
Crit Depth, Yc (ft) =  0.55
Top Width (ft) =  4.20
EGL (ft) =  0.80

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Elev (ft) Depth (ft)
Section

0.50 -0.50

1.00 0.00

1.50 0.50

2.00 1.00

2.50 1.50

3.00 2.00

Reach (ft)



N

O

R

T

H

 

F

I

F

T

H

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

R

O

L

L

I

N

G

 

H

I

L

L

S

 

D

R

.

N
8
4
°
 2

7
' 4

4
"
W

4
0
5
.8

8
'

S

8
°
 
3
3
'
 
2
5
"
E

L
=

8
5
.
6
1
'

S

5

0

°

 

0

3

'

 

0

0

"

W

1

2

6

.

4

6

'

L

=

1

6

8

.

5

9

,

R

=

2

4

6

0

.

0

0

D

=

3

°

5

5

'

3

6

"

S

4

2

°

 

5

2

'

 

3

2

"

W

2

8

5

.

3

4

'

S

4

2

°

 

5

2

'

 

3

2

"

W

L

=

1

8

7

.

0

7

'

,

N

3

6

°

 

0

1

'

 

2

5

"

W

L

 

=

 

1

0

7

.

1

5

'

A

P

N

 

0

0

1

-

6

1

A

-

0

1

8

N

O

R

M

A

N

 

G

U

Y

 

&

 

C

A

R

O

L

Y

N

 

M

O

S

E

R

Z

O

N

E

 

-

 

Z

R

A

P

N

 

0

0

1

-

6

1

A

-

0

1

7

K

E

V

I

N

 

&

 

R

U

T

H

 

V

A

L

L

E

Y

Z

O

N

E

 

-

 

Z

R

A

P

N

 

0

0

1

-

6

1

A

-

0

2

5

C

H

A

R

L

E

S

 

&

 

B

E

R

T

H

A

 

D

 

B

R

A

N

N

E

N

Z

O

N

E

-

Z

R

A

P

N

 

0

0

1

-

6

1

A

-

0

2

6

J

E

R

I

D

 

S

 

&

 

A

M

A

N

D

A

 

K

 

V

A

N

C

E

Z

O

N

E

 

-

Z

R

APN 001-610-013

GRACE BAPTIST CHURCH

PARCEL 1A FILE 646026

STARTING PARCEL (439506)

A

P

N

 

0

0

1

-

6

1

0

-

0

9

4

C

I

T

Y

 

O

F

 

E

L

K

O

Z

O

N

E

-

Z

A

A
P

N
 0

0
1
-6

1
0
-0

9
4

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 E

L
K

O

Z
O

N
E

 - Z
A

A

P

N

 

0

0

1

-

6

1

0

-

1

1

2

G

R

A

C

E

 

B

A

P

T

I

S

T

 

C

H

U

R

C

H

Z

O

N

E

 

-

 

Z

R

A

P

N

 

0

0

1

-

6

1

0

-

1

1

3

 

G

R

A

C

E

B

A

P

T

I

S

T

 

C

H

U

R

C

H

Z

O

N

E

 

-

 

Z

R

LOT 1

SIZE A

LOT 2

SIZE B

LOT 3

SIZE A

LOT 4

SIZE A

LOT 6

SIZE A

LOT 7

SIZE B

LOT 8

SIZE C

S

I

Z

E

 

A

L

O

T

 

9

S

I

Z

E

 

D

L

O

T

 

1

0

S

I

Z

E

 

B

L

O

T

 

1

1

S

I

Z

E

 

C

L

O

T

 

1

3

S

I

Z

E

 

B

L

O

T

 

1

5

S

I

Z

E

 

A

L

O

T

 

1

4

S

I

Z

E

 

B

L

O

T

 

1

2

S

I

Z

E

 

A

LOT 5

SIZE A

S

I

Z

E

 

A

L

O

T

 

1

6

S

I

Z

E

 

B

L

O

T

 

1

7

L

O

T

 

1

8

SIZE B

2106 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 6

SIZE A

2094 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 10

SIZE C

2080 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 1

SIZE D

2434 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 1

FRONTAGE/

DRIVEWAY

FRONTAGE/

DRIVEWAY

FRONTAGE/

DRIVEWAY

FRONTAGE/

DRIVEWAY

BUILDING

YARD

BUILDING

YARD

BUILDING

YARD

BUILDING

YARD

T
I
T

L
E

:
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 
B

Y
:

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

o
.
:

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
N

A
M

E

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
N

O
.

S
C

A
L

E
:

A
S

 
S

H
O

W
N

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

o
.

REFERENCE

N
o

.

REVISIONS

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

B
Y

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D

C
H

E
C

K
E

D

D
R

A
W

N

D
A

T
E

9
8

2
 
W

O
L

F
 
C

R
.
 
D

R
.

S
h
a
n
k
s
 
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g

S
P

R
I
N

G
 
C

R
E

E
K

,
 
N

E
V

A
D

A
 
 
8

9
8

1
5

2
0

0
2

1
6

0

I
S

S
U

E
 
F

O
R

 
R

E
V

I
E

W
M

E
S

7
-
2
4
-
2
0

7
7

5
-
7

5
3

-
5

1
0

0

s
h

a
n

k
s
e

n
g

@
g

m
a

i
l
.
c
o

m

N
5

T
H

 
T

O
W

N
 
H

O
M

E
 
 
S

B
D

PROJECT DATA

SUBDIVISION INFORMATION

UTILITIES

TENTATIVE MAP

SCALE: 1" = 30'

LOT DIMENSIONS

SCALE: 1" = 30'

NOTES

DRAWINGS LEGEND 

E

E

E
E

T
T

SHEET INDEX

VICINITY MAP

SCALE: 1" = 300'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT OFFSET 1' FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.L.=76.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S53° 58' 35"W37.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S42° 52' 32"W34.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	30' POWER 30' POWER EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 25' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S81° 26' 35"W32.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=31.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S47° 07' 28"E96.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L = 75.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=85.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) ACCESS, UTILITY, & DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) 15' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) 10' DRAINAGE UTILITY & ACCESS CENTERLINE - EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 60.00' ACCESS DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT GRANTED BY PARCEL MAP NO. 415475

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 30.00' ACCESS DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT GRANTED BY PARCEL MAP NO. 439506

AutoCAD SHX Text
S2° 19' 06"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S47° 07' 28"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S47° 07' 28"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°40'54"W 

AutoCAD SHX Text
sdsd

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°40'54"W 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°40'54"W 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S85°42'37"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
54.53'

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPPER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUAIL CI.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH FIFTH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANDSTONE CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
001-610-114

AutoCAD SHX Text
001-610-041

AutoCAD SHX Text
001-610-013

AutoCAD SHX Text
001-610-040

AutoCAD SHX Text
001-610-018

AutoCAD SHX Text
001-610-094

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
001-610-012

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAKOTA DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPPER TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
001-610-093

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
001-610-013

AutoCAD SHX Text
001-610-013

AutoCAD SHX Text
001-610-106

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES:  6/30/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHAEL E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHANKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2002160

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN SMALES

AutoCAD SHX Text
JARBIDGE ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN HOME SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENTATIVE MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ZONING:           AG, GENERAL AGRICULTURE DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ZONING:         R, SINGLE-FAMILY AND MULTIPLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM SET BACKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
     FRONT:              15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
     REAR                20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
     INTERIOR SIDE:        0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
     EXTERIOR SIDE:        15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT:   25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD:     NONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
     COMMUNITY NUMBER:   320010

AutoCAD SHX Text
     MAP NUMBER:         32007C5606E

AutoCAD SHX Text
     EFFECTIVE DATE:       9/4/13

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING REQUIREMENTS:     2 PER DWELLING UNIT (36)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING PROVIDED:         45

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE FLOW REQUIRED        1,500 GPM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DURATION:                 2 HRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB DIVISION NAME:        JARBIDGE ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPER:                LEGION CONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
                         599 SHADYBROOK DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
                         SPRING CREEK, NV 89815

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTACT:                  JOHN SMALES

AutoCAD SHX Text
                         (775) 778-1539

AutoCAD SHX Text
                         JOHNS.KOINONIA@GMAIL.COM

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION:                 NE 1/4 NW 1/4 OF SECTION 9 T. 34N R. 55E M.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN AND LEGAL:           001-610-093 PARCEL 1 FILE 530051

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS:                 NOT YET ASSIGNED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NUMBER OF LOTS:          18

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL SUBDIVIDED AREA     2.16 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT AREA:                 0.87 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON AREA:             1.29 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEDICATED STREETS:        0.0 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROSS/NET DENSITY:        8.33 UNITS/AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVERAGE SLOPE:            5.2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION OF NEAREST WELL, WATERCOURSE OR LAKE:     8 MILE CREEK - OVER 200'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION OF NEAREST SEPTIC SYSTEM:                  NONE WITHIN 100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER SUPPLY:            CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWAGE:                  CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL:                NV ENERGY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATURAL GAS:              SOUTHWEST GAS CORP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE SERVICE:        FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEVISION SERVICE:        ZITO MEDIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1)  IN ADDITION TO ANY EASEMENTS SHOWN, THE PARCELS ARE SUBJECT TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.00' DRAINAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENTS ALONG ALL LOT BOUNDARY LINES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2)  GRADING QUANTIFIES:  APPROXIMATELY 5,630 CY UNCLASSIFIED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXCAVATION (BALANCED CUT TO FILL).

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUBLE CONSTRUCTION SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE CONSTRUCTION SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC FLOW DIRECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER LINE (SIZE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER LINE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL LINE (OVER HEAD)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GAS MAIN OR SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E(ugd)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCC (SW, C&G)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRUST BLOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET LIGHT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR 1' INTERVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR 5' INTERVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
5159

AutoCAD SHX Text
5160

AutoCAD SHX Text
5159

AutoCAD SHX Text
5160

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE BOX OR PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2 CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER SHUTOFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY POLE/ GUY ANCHOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM DRAIN MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 1 CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL PAD OR VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
DROP INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"W(e)

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL LINE - UNDER GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
E(ohd)

AutoCAD SHX Text
E(ugd)

AutoCAD SHX Text
E(ohd)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS(e)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY CORNER - FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALC POINT, NOTHING SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY CORNER, TO BE SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL POINT & VERTICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4 CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE BREAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH MARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC PAVEMENT AREA - 4"AC/ 8" TYPE 2 AGGREGATE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING-ROCK MULCH & PLANTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING-PLANTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING-ROCK MULCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE II AGGREGATE BASE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING STALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE DEPARTMENT STAND PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
T1         TITLE SHEET / LOT LAYOUT        TITLE SHEET / LOT LAYOUT    TITLE SHEET / LOT LAYOUT TITLE SHEET / LOT LAYOUT T2         SITE PLAN         SITE PLAN SITE PLAN T3      UTILITY PLAN     UTILITY PLAN UTILITY PLAN T4      GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN      GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN  GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TITLE SHEET / LOT LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
3)  LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  APN 001-610-093; PARCEL 1 ON AMENDED MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO. 530051 AS FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE ELKO COUNTY RECORDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAID PARCEL CONTAINS 2.16 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING - EXTERIOR WALL



NORTH FIFTH STREET

ROLLING HILLS DR.

N84° 27' 44"W

405.88'

S8
° 3

3'
 2

5"
E

L=
85

.6
1'

S50° 0
3' 00"W

126.46'

L=168.59 , R=2460.00
D=3°55'36"

S42
° 5

2' 
32

"W

28
5.3

4'

S42
° 5

2' 
32

"W

L=
18

7.0
7'

,

N36° 01' 25"W

L = 107.15'

LOT 1 LOT 2 LOT 3 LOT 4
LOT 6 LOT 7 LOT 8

LO
T 9

LO
T 1

0

LO
T 1

1

LO
T 1

3

LO
T 1

5

LO
T 1

4

LO
T 1

2

LOT 5

LO
T 1

6

LO
T 1

7

LO
T 1

8 3

1

3

1

1

TI
TL

E:
PR

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y:
PR

EP
AR

ED
 F

O
R

:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
N

o.
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 N

AM
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N

D
R

AW
IN

G
 N

O
.

SC
AL

E:
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

SH
EE

T 
N

o.

REFERENCE

N
o.

REVISIONS

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

AP
PR

O
VE

D

AP
PR

O
VE

D

BY

D
ES

IG
N

ED

C
H

EC
KE

D

D
R

AW
N

D
AT

E

98
2 

W
O

LF
 C

R
. D

R
.

Sh
an

ks
 E

ng
ine

er
ing

SP
R

IN
G

 C
R

EE
K,

 N
EV

AD
A 

 8
98

15
20

02
16

0

R
EV

IS
IO

N
 A

M
ES

7-
21

-2
0

77
5-

75
3-

51
00

sh
an

ks
en

g@
gm

ai
l.c

om
N

5T
H

 T
O

W
N

 H
O

M
E 

 S
BD

SITE PLAN
SCALE: 1" = 30'

TYPICAL ROAD SECTIONS

M
ES

KA
FS

M
ES

M
ES

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"   WL STUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURNAROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURNAROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
"ALIGN 1" 10+00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
"ALIGN. 1" 10+25 "ALIGN 2"   0+00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
"ALIGN 2" 3+17 "ALIGN 3" 0+00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION A

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION C

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2 CURB AND GUTTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY ACCESS ROAD TO M.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UTYPICAL ROAD SECTION B

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO 95% OF D1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT TO 95%%% OF D1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
9" TYPE 2 CLASS B AGGREGATE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBGRADE - COMPACT TOP 6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES (SEE GRADING PLAN-2%%%MIN.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT TO 95%%% OF D1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" TYPE 2 CLASS B AGGREGATE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" MINIMUM DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT TO 95%%% OF D1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
 3" AC PAVEMENT @ 96%%% MARSHALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES 1%%% MIN 13%%% MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" PCC DRIVEWAY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" TYPE II AGGREGATE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE TO MATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" NATIVE MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT TO 90%%% OF D1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE @ 2%%% IN DIRECTION OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE TO EXISTING GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ac

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UTYPICAL ROAD SECTION C

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO 95% OF D1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT TO 95%%% OF D1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
9" TYPE 2 CLASS B AGGREGATE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBGRADE - COMPACT TOP 6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES (SEE GRADING PLAN-2%%%MIN.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT TO 95%%% OF D1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" TYPE 2 CLASS B AGGREGATE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" MINIMUM DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT TO 95%%% OF D1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
 3" AC PAVEMENT @ 96%%% MARSHALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT TO 95%%% OF D1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" TYPE 2 CLASS B AGGREGATE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES 1%%% MIN 13%%% MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" PCC DRIVEWAY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" TYPE II AGGREGATE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES 1%%% MIN 13%%% MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" PCC DRIVEWAY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" TYPE II AGGREGATE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UTYPICAL ROAD SECTION A

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO 95% OF D1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT TO 95%%% OF D1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
9" TYPE 2 CLASS B AGGREGATE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBGRADE - COMPACT TOP 6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES (SEE GRADING PLAN-2%%%MIN.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 1 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT TO 95%%% OF D1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" TYPE 2 CLASS B AGGREGATE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE TO MATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" MINIMUM DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT TO 95%%% OF D1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" NATIVE MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT TO 90%%% OF D1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE @ 2%%% IN DIRECTION OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE TO EXISTING GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL (R.EL=-.65)

AutoCAD SHX Text
 3" AC PAVEMENT @ 96%%% MARSHALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE TO MATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" NATIVE MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT TO 90%%% OF D1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE @ 2%%% IN DIRECTION OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE TO EXISTING GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES:  6/30/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHAEL E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHANKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2002160

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN SMALES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL ROAD SECTION LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALIGNMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0+29 TO 1+70

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1+70 TO 4+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0+93 TO 1+85

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0+00 TO 0+93

AutoCAD SHX Text
JARBIDGE ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN HOME SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENTATIVE MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN



2

5

'

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

N

O

R

T

H

 

F

I

F

T

H

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

R

O

L

L

I

N

G

 

H

I

L

L

S

 

D

R

.

G

R

A

N

T

E

D

 

4

3

9

5

0

6

N
8
4
°
 2

7
' 4

4
"
W

4
0
5
.8

8
'

S

8
°
 
3
3
'
 
2
5
"
E

L
=

8
5
.
6
1
'

S

5

0

°

 

0

3

'

 

0

0

"

W

1

2

6

.

4

6

'

L

=

1

6

8

.

5

9

,

R

=

2

4

6

0

.

0

0

D

=

3

°

5

5

'

3

6

"

S

4

2

°

 

5

2

'

 

3

2

"

W

2

8

5

.

3

4

'

S

4

2

°

 

5

2

'

 

3

2

"

W

L

=

1

8

7

.

0

7

'

,

N

3

6

°

 

0

1

'

 

2

5

"

W

L

 

=

 

1

0

7

.

1

5

'

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

L

O

T

 

9

L

O

T

 

1

0

L

O

T

 

1

1

L

O

T

 

1

3

L

O

T

 

1

5

L

O

T

 

1

4

L

O

T

 

1

2

LOT 5

L

O

T

 

1

6

L

O

T

 

1

7

L

O

T

 

1

8

2

5

'

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

3030

Q

U

A

I

L

 

C

I

R

C

L

E

8

"

 

S

S

6
" S

S

8
"W

8

"

W

G

R

A

N

T

E

D

 

4

3

9

5

0

6

N
8
4
°
 2

7
' 4

4
"
W

4
0
5
.8

8
'

S

4

2

°

 

5

2

'

 

3

2

"

W

2

8

5

.

3

4

'

S

4

2

°

 

5

2

'

 

3

2

"

W

L

=

1

8

7

.

0

7

'

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

L

O

T

 

9

L

O

T

 

1

0

L

O

T

 

1

1

L

O

T

 

1

3

L

O

T

 

1

5

L

O

T

 

1

4

L

O

T

 

1

2

LOT 5

D

A

K

O

T

A

 

D

R

I

V

E

T
I
T

L
E

:
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 
B

Y
:

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

o
.
:

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
N

A
M

E

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
N

O
.

S
C

A
L

E
:

A
S

 
S

H
O

W
N

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

o
.

REFERENCE

N
o

.

REVISIONS

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

B
Y

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D

C
H

E
C

K
E

D

D
R

A
W

N

D
A

T
E

9
8

2
 
W

O
L

F
 
C

R
.
 
D

R
.

S
h
a
n
k
s
 
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g

S
P

R
I
N

G
 
C

R
E

E
K

,
 
N

E
V

A
D

A
 
 
8

9
8

1
5

2
0

0
2

1
6

0

I
S

S
U

R
E

 
F

O
R

 
P

H
A

S
E

 
1
 
D

I
S

C
U

S
I
O

N
M

E
S

7
-
2
1
-
2
0

7
7

5
-
7

5
3

-
5

1
0

0

s
h

a
n

k
s
e

n
g

@
g

m
a

i
l
.
c
o

m

N
5

T
H

 
T

O
W

N
 
H

O
M

E
 
 
S

B
D

UTILITY PLAN

SCALE: 1" = 30'

NOTES

SEWER CONTINUATION

SCALE: 1" = 60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"   WL STUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEY MARKED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV MAY BE A 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT (VERIFY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 20" WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT (PROVIDE THIS MAP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM DRAIN INLET STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
±36"STORMSEWER (SIZE TO RETAIN 10YEAR EVENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO DAKOTA DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
"ALIGN 1" 10+00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
"ALIGN. 1" 10+25 "ALIGN 2"   0+00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
"ALIGN 2" 3+17 "ALIGN 3" 0+00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) OVERHEAD POWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD MANHOLE W/ ±6" OUTLET(SIZE TO MATCH   PREDEVELOPMENT Q10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S2° 19' 06"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S47° 07' 28"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S47° 07' 28"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUD&E 439506

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO DAKOTA DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5287.835

AutoCAD SHX Text
536870913

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS2161-CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
5287.825

AutoCAD SHX Text
14200

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS2161-MRK

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPPER TRAILS llc

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN 001-610-114

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN 001-610-112

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRACE BAPTIST CHURCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN 001-610-103

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF ELKO

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
001-610-041

AutoCAD SHX Text
001-610-113

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" %%C WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIES TO CHURCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" %%C WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"  WATER MAINVERIFY LOCATION & PROVIDE UTILITY EASEMENT AS  NEEDED (10' SHOWN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRACE BAPTIST CHURCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN 001-610-114

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRACE BAPTIST CHURCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1A FILE 646026

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE 646026

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DOESN'T CLOSE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUE 658187

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUE 658187

AutoCAD SHX Text
STARTING PARCEL (439506)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT DRAINAGE DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALONG PU&D EASEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREATED FILE NO. 439506

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUD&E 439506

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH PRE-DEVELOPMENT Q10

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH RETENTION POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1B FILE 646026

AutoCAD SHX Text
STARTING PARCEL (439506)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLS2161

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT (PROVIDE THIS MAP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM DRAIN INLET STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
±36"STORMSEWER (SIZE TO RETAIN 10YEAR EVENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO DAKOTA DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
"ALIGN 2" 3+17 "ALIGN 3" 0+00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD MANHOLE W/ ±6" OUTLET(SIZE TO MATCH   PREDEVELOPMENT Q10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S47° 07' 28"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE NEW SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON EXISTING 8" SEWER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN 001-610-114

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRACE BAPTIST CHURCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUE 658187

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT DRAINAGE DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALONG PU&D EASEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREATED FILE NO. 439506

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUD&E 439506

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH PRE-DEVELOPMENT Q10

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH RETENTION POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO DAKOTA DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES:  6/30/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHAEL E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHANKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T3

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2002160

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN SMALES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
1)  WATER MAINS TO BE PRESSURE CLASS 235 PVC (AWWA C-900).

AutoCAD SHX Text
2)  WATER SERVICE LINES TO BE 3/4" IPS 200 PSI POLYETHYLENE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3)  SANITARY SEWER MAINS AND SERVICE LINES TO BE SDR-35 PVC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4)  ELECTRICAL LAYOUT TO BE DESIGNED BY NV ENERGY

AutoCAD SHX Text
5)  TELEPHONE LAYOUT TO BE DESIGNED BY FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6)  NATURAL GAS LAYOUT TO BE DESIGNED BY SOUTHWEST GAS CORP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALIGNMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1+71

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3+29

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1+90

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4+21

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT LOCATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALIGNMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4+05

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0+79

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
JARBIDGE ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN HOME SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENTATIVE MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY MAP



N

.

 

5

T

H

 

S

T

.

R

O

L

L

I

N

G

 

H

I

L

L

S

 

D

R

.

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

L

O

T

 

9

L

O

T

 

1

0

L

O

T

 

1

1

L

O

T

 

1

3

L

O

T

 

1

5

L

O

T

 

1

4

L

O

T

 

1

2

LOT 5

L

O

T

 

1

6

L

O

T

 

1

7

L

O

T

 

1

8

LEGEND  GRADING & DRAINAGE

T
I
T

L
E

:
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 
B

Y
:

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

o
.
:

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
N

A
M

E

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
N

O
.

S
C

A
L

E
:

A
S

 
S

H
O

W
N

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

o
.

REFERENCE

N
o

.

REVISIONS

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

B
Y

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D

C
H

E
C

K
E

D

D
R

A
W

N

D
A

T
E

9
8

2
 
W

O
L

F
 
C

R
.
 
D

R
.

S
h
a
n
k
s
 
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g

S
P

R
I
N

G
 
C

R
E

E
K

,
 
N

E
V

A
D

A
 
 
8

9
8

1
5

2
0

0
2

1
6

0

I
S

S
U

R
E

 
F

O
R

 
P

H
A

S
E

 
R

E
V

I
E

W
M

E
S

4
-
1
5
-
2
0

7
7

5
-
7

5
3

-
5

1
0

0

s
h

a
n

k
s
e

n
g

@
g

m
a

i
l
.
c
o

m

N
5

T
H

 
T

O
W

N
 
H

O
M

E
 
 
S

B
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"   WL STUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT (VERIFY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%P90.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.41%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.63%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIP/GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
91.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
91.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
91.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.63%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.2:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
91.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%P81.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH EG

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%P80.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH EG

AutoCAD SHX Text
90.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%P70.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH EG

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%P79.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH EG

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC/GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC/GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%P76.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH EG

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.16%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.24%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.16%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5290

AutoCAD SHX Text
5285

AutoCAD SHX Text
5280

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC/GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC/GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
5275

AutoCAD SHX Text
5270

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.16%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
5285

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.16%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
5285

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.7%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
5285

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.89%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5290

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.65:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD MANHOLE W/ ±6" OUTLET(SIZE TO MATCH   PREDEVELOPMENT Q10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO DAKOTA DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
5290

AutoCAD SHX Text
5285

AutoCAD SHX Text
5275

AutoCAD SHX Text
5270

AutoCAD SHX Text
5265

AutoCAD SHX Text
5270

AutoCAD SHX Text
5275

AutoCAD SHX Text
5280

AutoCAD SHX Text
5285

AutoCAD SHX Text
5280

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.56%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.73/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.48/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.05%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.15%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.60%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.74/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.24/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.95%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.64/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.77/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.51/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
78.51/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.64/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.05/TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.02/BOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.02/TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.9/BOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.64/TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.6/BOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
5%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%P81.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH EG

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.09/TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.7/BOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.96/TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.68/BOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%P81.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH EG

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.14/TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.2/BOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.1%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.6%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.95%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.45%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
78.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.67/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.49/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.79/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.79/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.50%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.50%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.79/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.79/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.95%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.49/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.49/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL/GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG/GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.16%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.7%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.8%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5283

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.8%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.4/BOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.54/TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.49/TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.85/BOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.70%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.60%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.45%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.73/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.48/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.48/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.23/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.7%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.7%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.3%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.7%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
78.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.2:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
78.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
78.63/TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.6/BOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.12/TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.98/BOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q10=2.77CFS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q10=0.31 CFS

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMBINED DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q10=4.53 CFS

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%P22' 6"%%C DISCHARGE PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q10=1.5 CFS

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"CMP 

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%P550 CFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION VOLUME(Q10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
5265

AutoCAD SHX Text
5265

AutoCAD SHX Text
5275

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.6%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5270

AutoCAD SHX Text
5:1x1' "V" DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
10:1x6" "V" DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
10:1x6" "V" DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.51/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.64/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.69/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.51/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.69/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.65%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.65%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.65%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.65%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
5280

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL/GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%P82.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH EG

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL/AP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL/GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL/GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.55%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.8%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL/GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.1%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.6%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5281

AutoCAD SHX Text
5282

AutoCAD SHX Text
78.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.65%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.43%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.65%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.64/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.86/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
78.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.46/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.64/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC/AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
78.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
TE SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.29/TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.4/BOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
5270

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.7/TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.7/BOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.55TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.2/BOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.7/BOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.7/TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
10%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.4/TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.7/BOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.8%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
78.51/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.64/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.9%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5278

AutoCAD SHX Text
5279

AutoCAD SHX Text
78.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL/GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC/GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC/GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5280

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.9%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5284

AutoCAD SHX Text
5285

AutoCAD SHX Text
5286

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.40/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.55/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.7%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.26/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.40/TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.7%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.40/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.55/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.56/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.40/FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL

AutoCAD SHX Text
87.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
87.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
EOG

AutoCAD SHX Text
87.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
87.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
EOG

AutoCAD SHX Text
5290

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.3%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.3%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL/GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'X6' STORM DRAIN INLET STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRATE=72.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
IE-36"%%C OUTLET PIPE=67.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S=1.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
IE IN 36"%%C =66.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=71.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
IE OUT 6"%%C=66.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
S=10%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.6%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5295

AutoCAD SHX Text
5294

AutoCAD SHX Text
5293

AutoCAD SHX Text
5292

AutoCAD SHX Text
5291

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
39'

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL

AutoCAD SHX Text
35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
87.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.4:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
88.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.2:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
91.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSW

AutoCAD SHX Text
90.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.0:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE - EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PC CONCRETE - PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PC CONCRETE - EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC PAVEMENT - PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM DRAIN - PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW LINE - PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF GRAVEL BASE - PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREST OF SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' INTERVAL CONTOUR - PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' INTERVAL CONTOUR - PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' INTERVAL CONTOUR - EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' INTERVAL CONTOUR - EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
5275

AutoCAD SHX Text
5276

AutoCAD SHX Text
5275

AutoCAD SHX Text
5276

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE - PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE WALL (UNDER 4' VERTICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES:  6/30/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHAEL E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHANKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2002160

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN SMALES

AutoCAD SHX Text
JARBIDGE ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN HOME SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENTATIVE MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN



Agenda Item # I.A.2.  

Created on 8/24/2020  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone No. 

5-20, filed by Legion Construction and Development LLC., for a change in zoning 

from AG (General Agriculture) to R (Single Family and Multiple Family 

Residential) Zoning District, approximately 2.415 acres of property, to allow for a 

proposed townhome development, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  September 1, 2020 
 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS,  
 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: This rezone would allow for the future development of a 

townhome subdivision. The rezone is being processed concurrent with TM 6-20 for 

Jarbidge Estates as required by Elko City Code 3-3-5(A) 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Memo  
 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution which approves Rezone No. 5-20 based on facts and findings as presented 

in Staff Report dated August 12, 2020. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated August 12, 2020. 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 
11. Agenda Distribution:  Legion Construction and Development LLC 

599 Shadybrook Drive 

Spring Creek, NV 89815 

 

 





Page 1 of 5

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

MEMO DATE: August 12, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: September 1, 2020
APPLICATION NUMBER: Rezone 5-20
APPLICANT: Legion Construction and Development LLC
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Zone amendment from AG to R associated with

the subdivision of property, Jarbidge Estates
Subdivision

ADDITIONAL APPLICATIONS: Tentative Map 6-20, CUP 4-20

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



REZONE 5-20
Legion Const. & Development
LLC
APN: 001-610-093

Page 2 of 5

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-610-093

PARCEL SIZE: 2.16 acres

EXISTING ZONING: AG- General Agriculture

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
 The property is surrounded by:

 North: (AG)- Agriculture / Undeveloped
 West: (R) Residential / Developed
 South: (R) Residential / Developed
 East: (R) Residential / Partially developed, Church

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
 The area is currently undeveloped.
 The area has moderately sloping.
 The area is accessed from North 5th Street.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5 Residential Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-21  Amendments
 City of Elko Zoning – Chapter 3 Subdivisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND:

1. The property is owned by the applicant.
2. The rezone includes all of APN 001-610-093
3. The area fronts North 5th Street.
4. City water is located in the immediate vicinity. Sewer will need to be extended.
5. Other non-city utilities are located in the immediate area.



REZONE 5-20
Legion Const. & Development
LLC
APN: 001-610-093

Page 3 of 5

6. The application for rezone is based on an application for subdivision of property. As
such, the rezone application must comply with section 3-3-5(A) Zoning Amendments.

MASTER PLAN:

Land use:

1. Land Use is shown as Medium Density Residential.
2. Supporting zone districts for Medium Density Residential are Single Family/Multi

Family (R), Single Family (R1), Two Family (R2), Planned Unit Development (PUD),
Residential Office (RO), Residential Business (RB), Mobile Home Subdivision (RMH-
2), and Manufactured Home Subdivision (RMH-3).

3. Zone classification of the properties are required to conform to the Master Plan as per
Elko City Code 3-3-5(A).

4. Objective 1: Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of
lifestyles, incomes, and age groups.

5. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

Transportation:

1. The area will be accessed from North 5th Street.
2. North 5th Street is classified in the Transportation Component as a minor arterial.

The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan
and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property sits outside any capture zone for the City of Elko wells.

The proposed zone district and resultant land use is in conformance with wellhead protection
plan.

SECTION 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts:

1. No building, structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building or
structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, moved, or structurally
altered, unless in conformity with all regulations specified in this subsection for the
district in which it is located.

2. No building or other structure shall hereafter be erected or altered:
a. To exceed the heights required by the current City Airport Master Plan;
b. To accommodate or house a greater number of families than as permitted in this
chapter;



REZONE 5-20
Legion Const. & Development
LLC
APN: 001-610-093

Page 4 of 5

c. To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or
d. To have narrower or smaller rear yards, front yards, side yards or other open spaces,
than required in this title; or in any other manner contrary to the provisions of this
chapter.

3. No part of a required yard, or other open space, or off street parking or loading space,
provided in connection with any building or use, shall be included as part of a yard, open
space, or off street parking or loading space similarly required for any other building.

4. No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall be reduced in dimension or area
below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. The property meets the area
requirements for the proposed zone district.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B).

SECTION 3-2-5 (B) – Single Family Residential

1. The applicant has applied for a conditional use permit for the proposed development of
townhomes, Elko City Code 3-2-5(E)(3).

2. As the property develops, it will be required to be consistent with the listed principal uses
permitted or be approved a CUP for conditionally approved uses.

3. As the property develops, it will be required to be in conformance with the development
standards in Elko City Code 3-2-5(E) 5 & 6.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-5.

SECTION 3-2-21:

The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21.

SECTION 3-3-5

1. The application for change of zoning district boundaries shall be heard by the Planning
Commission at the same meeting as the tentative map is considered, but shall be acted
upon as a separate item. The application for change of zoning district boundaries shall be
heard prior to the action item for possible approval of the tentative map. When a tentative
map constitutes only one unit of a larger development intended for progressive maps, the
change of zoning district boundaries may be limited to the area contained in the tentative
map application. Any required change of zoning district boundaries shall have been
approved by the City Council prior to tentative map approval. A change of zoning district
boundaries required under this Section must, without limitation, conform to all applicable
master plan(s) adopted by the City.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-3-5(A).

SECTION 3-8:

The proposed zone district is not located in a designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area
(SFHA).



REZONE 5-20
Legion Const. & Development
LLC
APN: 001-610-093

Page 5 of 5

FINDINGS:

1. The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

2. The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

3. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

4. The proposed zone district and resultant land use is in conformance with City Wellhead
Protection Plan.

5. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B).

6. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-5.

7. The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21.

8. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-3-5(A).

9. The proposed zone district is not located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area
(SFHA).

10. The proposed zone district is consistent with surrounding land uses.

11. Development under the proposed zone district will not adversely impact natural systems,
or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a
danger to human health and safety.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be approved as presented.

















August 17, 2020            
Legion Construction and Development LLC  

Legal Description – Parcel No. 1 
APN 001-610-093  

D E S C R I P T I O N 
A parcel of land to be rezoned from A-Agriculture to R-Residential , defined as parcel #1 file 
415475 being a portion of Section 9, Township 34 North, Range 55E, M.D.B.& and now known 
as parcel 1 on amended map file 530051 including the frontage along said parcel 1 to the 
centerline line of N. 5th Street in Elko County, Nevada and more particularly described below: 
 

 Parcel No. 1 – APN 001-610-093 

Commencing at the north east section corner of said section 9, a brass cap; 
thence on a bearing of north 8946’09" west for a distance of 5000.27 feet to a point on 

the North 5th St. right of way line. 
Thence along said right of way on a circular curve to the right from a tangent bearing S 

54° 40’ 12” east, with a radius of 11,140 feet, through an internal angle of 4° 43’ 28” for an arc 
length of 918.58 feet;  
  thence along said right-of-way on a bearing south 4956'44" east, for a distance of 583.04 
feet; 
 thence along said right of way on a circular curve to the right with a radius of 2,460 feet, 
through an internal angle of 9° 59’ 44”, for an arc length of 429.16 feet to corner No 1, the north 
west corner of Parcel No. 1 and the true point of beginning; 
 thence on a bearing north 50° 03’00” east, for a distance of 126.46 feet to corner No. 2; 
 thence on a bearing north 08° 33’25” west, for a distance of 85.61 feet to corner No. 3; 

thence on a bearing south 84 27’44" east, for a distance of 405.88 feet to corner No. 4; 
thence on a bearing south 42 52’32" west, for a distance of 472.41 feet to corner No. 5, a 

point on the North 5th Street right of way line; 
thence along said right of way on a bearing north 36 01’25" west, for a distance of 

107.15 feet to corner No. 6; 
thence along said right of way on a circular curve to the left, with a radius of 2,460 feet 

through an internal angle of  3° 55’ 36”, for an arc length of 168.58 feet to corner No 1; the 
point of beginning. 

Said Parcel No. 1 contains 2.163 acres, more or less. 
 

North 5th Street Frontage 

 Commencing at the northwest property corner of said Parcel No. 1 identified above as 
corner No. 1, a point on the North 5th Street right of way line and the true point of beginning, 
 Thence along said right of way of North 5th Street on a circular curve to the right from a 
tangent bearing S 39° 57’ 01” east, with a radius of 2,460 feet, through an internal angle of 3° 

55’ 36” for an arc length of 168.58 feet to corner No. 6; 
thence along said right of way on a bearing south 36 01’25" east, for a distance of 

107.15 feet to corner No. 5; 
thence on a bearing south 53° 58’ 35” west for a distance of 40.00 feet to corner No. 7, a 

point on the center line of North 5th Street; 
 thence along the centerline of North 5th Street on bearing north 36° 01’25” west for a 
distance of 107.15 feet to corner No. 8 



 thence along said centerline of North 5th Street on a circular curve to the left with a radius 
of 2,420 feet, through an internal angle of  3° 55’ 36”, for an arc length of 165.84’ to corner No. 
9; 
 thence on a bearing north 50° 02’59” east, for a distance of 40.00 feet to corner No. 1; the 

point of beginning. 
 

Said frontage of North 5th Street contains 0.252 acres more or less. 
 
The total gross area to be rezoned contains 2.415 acres more or less.   

Kenny
Text Box

Kenny
Text Box

Kenny
Text Box



NORTH FIFTH STREET

ROLLING HILLS DR.

S84° 27' 44"E
405.88'

S50° 0
3' 00"W

126.46'

APN 001-61A-018

APN 001-61A-017

APN 001-61A-025

APN 001-61A-026

LOT 1 LOT 2 LOT 3 LOT 4
LOT 6 LOT 7 LOT 8

LO
T 9

LO
T 1

0

LO
T 1

1

LO
T 1

3

LO
T 1

5

LO
T 1

4

LO
T 1

2

LOT 5

LO
T 1

6

LO
T 1

7

LO
T 1

8

BROOKWOOD DR.

ROCKY RD.

APN 001-61I-050

APN 001-61I-051

APN 001-61I-052

APN 001-61I-053

APN 001-61I-054

APN 001-61I-055

APN 001-61I-056

APN 001-61I-057

APN 001-61I-058

APN 001-61I-059

APN 001-61I-060

APN 001-61I-062

APN 001-61I-078

APN 001-61I-077

APN 001-61I-076

APN 001-61I-072

APN 001-610-094

APN 001-610-095

APN 001-610-103

N89°46'09"W  5000.27'

TANGENT BEARING
S54°40'12"E

L=918.58 , R=11140.00

D=4°43'28"

N49° 56' 44"W

583.04'

L=429.16 , R=2460.00

D=9°59'44"

L=168.58 , R=2460.00

D=3°55'36"

N36° 01' 25"W
107.15'

S8
° 3

3'
 2

5"
E

85
.6

1'

S42
° 5

2' 
32

"W

47
2.4

1'

S50° 02' 59"W
40.00'

S53° 58' 35"W
40.00'

L=165.84 , R=2420.00

D=3°55'36"

N36° 01' 25"W
107.15'

APN 001-161-093

TI
TL

E:
PR

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y:
PR

EP
AR

ED
 F

O
R

:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
N

o.
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 N

AM
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N

D
R

AW
IN

G
 N

O
.

SC
AL

E:
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

SH
EE

T 
N

o.

REFERENCE

N
o.

REVISIONS

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

AP
PR

O
VE

D

AP
PR

O
VE

D

BY

D
ES

IG
N

ED

C
H

EC
KE

D

D
R

AW
N

D
AT

E

98
2 

W
O

LF
 C

R
. D

R
.

Sh
an

ks
 E

nt
er

pr
ise

s
SP

R
IN

G
 C

R
EE

K,
 N

EV
AD

A 
 8

98
15

20
02

16
0

IS
SU

E 
FO

R
 R

EV
IE

W
M

ES
8-

11
-2

0

77
5-

75
3-

51
00

sh
an

ks
en

g@
gm

ai
l.c

om
N

5T
H

 T
O

W
N

 H
O

M
E 

 S
BDAREA MAP

M
ES

KA
FS

M
ES

M
ES

SHEET INDEX

59
9 

Sh
ad

yb
ro

ok
 D

r
Sp

rin
g 

C
re

ek
, N

V 
89

81
5

IS
SU

E 
FO

R
 R

EV
IE

W
KA

S
8-

17
-2

0

AutoCAD SHX Text
001-610-094

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED INTERIOR LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TANGENT BEARING LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND SECTION CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA TO BE REZONED FROM AG TO R

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED INTERIOR LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TANGENT BEARING LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND SECTION CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA TO BE REZONED FROM AG TO R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2002160

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGION CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
280

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
JARBIDGE ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN HOME SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE CHANGE-AREA MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z1         AREA MAP        AREA MAP    AREA MAP AREA MAP Z2         PLOT PLAN          PLOT PLAN  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
B



NORTH FIFTH STREET

ROLLING HILLS DR.

N84° 27' 44"W

405.88'

S8
° 3

3'
 2

5"
E

L=
85

.6
1'

S50° 0
3' 00"W

126.46'

L=168.59 , R=2460.00
D=3°55'36"

S42
° 5

2' 
32

"W

28
5.3

4'

S42
° 5

2' 
32

"W

L=
18

7.0
7'

,

N36° 01' 25"W

L = 107.15'

LOT 1 LOT 2 LOT 3 LOT 4
LOT 6 LOT 7 LOT 8

LO
T 9

LO
T 1

0

LO
T 1

1

LO
T 1

3

LO
T 1

5

LO
T 1

4

LO
T 1

2

LOT 5

LO
T 1

6

LO
T 1

7

LO
T 1

8 3

1

3

1

1

SIZE A SIZE B SIZE A SIZE A
SIZE A SIZE B SIZE C

SIZE
 A

SIZE
 D

SIZE
 B

SIZE
 C

SIZE
 B

SIZE
 A

SIZE
 B

SIZE
 A

SIZE A

SIZE
 A

SIZE
 B

SIZE B
2106 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 6

SIZE A
2094 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 10

SIZE C
2080 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 1

SIZE D
2434 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 1

FRONTAGE/
DRIVEWAY

FRONTAGE/
DRIVEWAY

FRONTAGE/
DRIVEWAY

FRONTAGE/
DRIVEWAY

BUILDING

YARD

BUILDING

YARD

BUILDING

YARD

BUILDING

YARD

SIZE B
2106 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 6

SIZE A
2094 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 10

SIZE C
2080 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 1

SIZE D
2434 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 1

FRONTAGE/
DRIVEWAY

FRONTAGE/
DRIVEWAY

FRONTAGE/
DRIVEWAY

FRONTAGE/
DRIVEWAY

BUILDING

YARD

BUILDING

YARD

BUILDING

YARD

BUILDING

YARD

PLOT PLAN
SCALE: 1" = 30'

TI
TL

E:
PR

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y:
PR

EP
AR

ED
 F

O
R

:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
N

o.
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 N

AM
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N

D
R

AW
IN

G
 N

O
.

SC
AL

E:
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

SH
EE

T 
N

o.

REFERENCE

N
o.

REVISIONS

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

AP
PR

O
VE

D

AP
PR

O
VE

D

BY

D
ES

IG
N

ED

C
H

EC
KE

D

D
R

AW
N

D
AT

E

98
2 

W
O

LF
 C

R
. D

R
.

Sh
an

ks
 E

nt
er

pr
ise

s
SP

R
IN

G
 C

R
EE

K,
 N

EV
AD

A 
 8

98
15

20
02

16
0

IS
SU

E 
FO

R
 R

EV
IE

W
M

ES
8-

11
-2

0

77
5-

75
3-

51
00

sh
an

ks
en

g@
gm

ai
l.c

om
N

5T
H

 T
O

W
N

 H
O

M
E 

 S
BD

M
ES

KA
FS

M
ES

M
ES

59
9 

Sh
ad

yb
ro

ok
 D

r
Sp

rin
g 

C
re

ek
, N

V 
89

81
5

LOT DIMENSIONS
SCALE: 1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURNAROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURNAROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
"ALIGN 1" 10+00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
"ALIGN. 1" 10+25 "ALIGN 2"   0+00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
"ALIGN 2" 3+17 "ALIGN 3" 0+00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2 CURB AND GUTTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY ACCESS ROAD TO M.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) PARKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) PARKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) PARKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2002160

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGION CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
JARBIDGE ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN HOME SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE CHANGE-PLOT PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Exp:6-30-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNETH A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
o.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRARY-SKALLA



Agenda Item # I.A.3.  

Created on 8/12/2020  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 4-

20, filed by Legion Construction and Development LLC., which would allow for a 

townhome development within a R (Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential) 

Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  September 1, 2020 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: Within the R- Residential Zoning District, townhouses are 

allowed with the approval of a Conditional Use Permit. 
 
6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 
7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report 

 
8. Recommended Motion: Move to conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit 4-20 

based on the facts, findings and conditions presented in Staff Report dated August 

12, 2020 
 

9. Findings: See staff report dated August 12, 2020 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Legion Construction and Development LLC 
599 Shadybrook Drive 

Spring Creek, NV 89815  





Page 1 of 7

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

DATE: August 12, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: September 1, 2020
APPLICATION NUMBER: Conditional Use Permit 4-20
APPLICANT: Legion Construction & Development LLC.
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Development of 18 Townhomes
RELATED APPLICATIONS: TM 6-20, REZ 5-20

A Conditional Use Permit for the development of 18 townhomes within the R-Single Family
Multiple Family Residential Zoning District as proposed with zone amendment application
REZ 5-20.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact and conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



CUP 4-20
Legion Const. & Development
LLC.
APN: 001-610-093

Page 2 of 7

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-610-093

PROPERTY SIZE: 2.16 acres

EXISTING ZONING: AG- General Agriculture with a zone amendment
application (REZ 5-20) proposing R- Single Family
Multiple Family Residential with approval.

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
 The property is surrounded by:

 North: (AG)- Agriculture / Undeveloped
 West: (R) Residential / Developed
 South: (R) Residential / Developed
 East: (R)  Residential / Partially developed, Church

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
 The area is currently undeveloped.
 The area has moderately sloping.
 The area is accessed from North 5th Street.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan-Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan-Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Code 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Code 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Code 3-2-5 Residential Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Code 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Code 3-2-18 Conditional Use Permits
 City of Elko Code 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
1. The property is owned by the applicant.
2. The rezone includes all of APN 001-610-093
3. The area fronts North 5th Street.
4. City water is located in the immediate vicinity. Sewer will need to be extended.
5. Other non-city utilities are located in the immediate area.



CUP 4-20
Legion Const. & Development
LLC.
APN: 001-610-093

Page 3 of 7

6. The application for Conditional Use Permit is running concurrent with an application for a
zone amendment of the property and the Tentative Map 6-20 that was submitted for the
Jarbidge Estates Subdivision.

MASTER PLAN

Land Use:

1. Land Use is shown as Medium Density Residential.
2. Supporting zone districts for Medium Density Residential are Single Family/Multi Family

(R), Single Family (R1), Two Family (R2), Planned Unit Development (PUD), Residential
Office (RO), Residential Business (RB), Mobile Home Subdivision (RMH-2), and
Manufactured Home Subdivision (RMH-3).

3. Zone classification of the properties are required to conform to the Master Plan as per
Elko City Code 3-3-5(A).

4. Objective 1: Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of
lifestyles, incomes, and age groups.

5. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The proposed conditional use permit is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan

Transportation:

1. The area will be accessed from North 5th Street.
2. North 5th Street is classified in the Transportation Component as a Minor Arterial.
3. The property will be required to have sidewalk connectivity along North 5th Street.

The proposed conditional use permit is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation
Component and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property sits outside any capture zone for the City of Elko wells.

The proposed conditional use and resultant land use is in conformance with wellhead protection
plan.

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS

 Section 3-2-3 (C) 1 of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions
shall apply.



CUP 4-20
Legion Const. & Development
LLC.
APN: 001-610-093

Page 4 of 7

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as
“principal uses permitted’ in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as
principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses
permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of
location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in
this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council.

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or
conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.

1. Section 3-2-3(C) states that certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses
permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of location,
design, construction, operation and maintenance specified in Chapter 3 or imposed by
the Planning Commission or City Council.

2. Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land
is held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason
of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation,
extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features
likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The
planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state in writing
the particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the
right to present evidence contesting such determination to the city council if he or she
so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the
determination of unsuitability.”

The proposed development is required to have an approval as a conditional use to be in
conformance with this section of code.

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS

1. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection.

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall
be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title.

The proposed development conforms to Section 3-2-4 of the City Code.

SECTION 3-2-5 RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS

1. Section 3-2-5(E)(3)-Conditional Uses Permitted- Multiple-family residential
developments which contain five (5) or more units located on a single lot or parcel;
townhouse, or row house developments.



CUP 4-20
Legion Const. & Development
LLC.
APN: 001-610-093

Page 5 of 7

2. Section 3-2-5(B)(4) The minimum setback standards shall be the following.

 Front Yard: A minimum of 15 feet, 20 feet to a garage.
 Interior Side Yard: A minimum setback of zero feet (0') to five and one-half feet

(51/2') shall be required. For attached units, an interior side yard setback can be
zero (0’) feet.

 Exterior Side Yard: A minimum setback of fifteen feet (15') shall be required
 Rear Yard: A minimum setback of twenty feet (20') shall be required

The proposed development is required to conform to this section of city code. 3-2-5(E).

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS

 It would appear that each townhome has two off street parking stalls provided in a garage
and additional parking on a parking pad outside their townhome.  There are also 10 guest
parking stalls provided.

Conformance with 3-2-17 is required as the property develops.

SECTION 3-2-18 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS

General Regulations:
1. Certain uses of land within designated zoning districts shall be permitted as principal uses

only upon issuance of a conditional use permit. Subject to the requirements of this chapter,
other applicable chapters, and where applicable to additional standards established by the
Planning Commission, or the City Council, a conditional use permit for such uses may be
issued.

2. Every conditional use permit issued, including a permit for a mobile home park, shall
automatically lapse and be of no effect one (1) year from the date of its issue unless the
permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific property to the use for which
the permit was issued.

3. Every conditional use permit issued shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only
to the specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the
Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all
zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have
been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with
the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well
as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the
property owner.

4. Conditional use permits shall be reviewed from time to time by City personnel.
Conditional use permits may be formally reviewed by the Planning Commission. In the
event that any or all of the conditions of the permit or this chapter are not adhered to, the
conditional use permit will be subject to revocation.



CUP 4-20
Legion Const. & Development
LLC.
APN: 001-610-093

Page 6 of 7

3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT

The property is not located within a Special Flood Hazard Area.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed development is in conformance with the Land Use component of the Master
Plan

2. The proposed development is in conformance with the existing transportation
infrastructure and the Transportation component of the Master Plan

3. The site is suitable for the proposed use.
4. The proposed development is in conformance with the City Wellhead Protection Program.
5. The proposed use is consistent with surrounding land uses.
6. The proposed use is in conformance with City Code 3-2-5 (E) Residential Zoning District

and meets the required setbacks.
7. The proposed development is in conformance with 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, 3-2-18, and 3-8 of

the Elko City Code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends APPROVAL of CUP 4-20 with the following conditions:

1. The CUP 4-20 shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the submitted
application conforming to the exhibits as presented.

2. Landscaping shall be installed and not obstruct the view of oncoming traffic at the
intersection with North 5th Street.

3. CUP 4-20 to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days after
commencement of work.

4. The permit shall be personal to the permittee, Legion Construction and Development, LLC
and applicable only to the specific use of townhomes and to the specific property for which
it is issued. However, the Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional
use permit to another owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use,
signifying that all zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with
the permit have been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable
and shall run with the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by
the permit, as well as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the
responsibility of the property owner.

5. Guest parking to be for guest vehicles only, no RV parking allowed on site.
6. There shall not be any placement of any mail gang boxes or kiosks in association with this

complex placed in the city’s right of way and shall remain internal to the complex
7. The exterior of the building shall be compatible with surrounding areas and shall be similar

to what is presented in the application.
8. The common areas are to be landscaped and maintained in an acceptable manner at all

times.



CUP 4-20
Legion Const. & Development
LLC.
APN: 001-610-093

Page 7 of 7

9. Zone Change 5-20 to be approved and in effect prior to any construction activity.
10. Jarbidge Estates Subdivision TM 6-20 be approved.



















NORTH FIFTH STREET

ROLLING HILLS DR.

N84° 27' 44"W

405.88'

S8
° 3

3'
 2

5"
E

L=
85

.6
1'

S50° 0
3' 00"W

126.46'

L=168.59 , R=2460.00
D=3°55'36"

S42
° 5

2' 
32

"W

28
5.3

4'

S42
° 5

2' 
32

"W

L=
18

7.0
7'

,

N36° 01' 25"W

L = 107.15'

LOT 1 LOT 2 LOT 3 LOT 4
LOT 6 LOT 7 LOT 8

LO
T 9

LO
T 1

0

LO
T 1

1

LO
T 1

3

LO
T 1

5

LO
T 1

4

LO
T 1

2

LOT 5

LO
T 1

6

LO
T 1

7

LO
T 1

8 3

1

3

1

1

SIZE A SIZE B SIZE A SIZE A
SIZE A SIZE B SIZE C

SIZE
 A

SIZE
 D

SIZE
 B

SIZE
 C

SIZE
 B

SIZE
 A

SIZE
 B

SIZE
 A

SIZE A

SIZE
 A

SIZE
 B

SIZE B
2106 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 6

SIZE A
2094 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 10

SIZE C
2080 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 1

SIZE D
2434 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 1

FRONTAGE/
DRIVEWAY

FRONTAGE/
DRIVEWAY

FRONTAGE/
DRIVEWAY

FRONTAGE/
DRIVEWAY

BUILDING

YARD

BUILDING

YARD

BUILDING

YARD

BUILDING

YARD

SIZE B
2106 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 6

SIZE A
2094 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 10

SIZE C
2080 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 1

SIZE D
2434 S.F.

# OF LOTS = 1

FRONTAGE/
DRIVEWAY

FRONTAGE/
DRIVEWAY

FRONTAGE/
DRIVEWAY

FRONTAGE/
DRIVEWAY

BUILDING

YARD

BUILDING

YARD

BUILDING

YARD

BUILDING

YARD

PLOT PLAN
SCALE: 1" = 30'

TI
TL

E:
PR

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y:
PR

EP
AR

ED
 F

O
R

:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
N

o.
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 N

AM
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N

D
R

AW
IN

G
 N

O
.

SC
AL

E:
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

SH
EE

T 
N

o.

REFERENCE

N
o.

REVISIONS

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

AP
PR

O
VE

D

AP
PR

O
VE

D

BY

D
ES

IG
N

ED

C
H

EC
KE

D

D
R

AW
N

D
AT

E

98
2 

W
O

LF
 C

R
. D

R
.

Sh
an

ks
 E

nt
er

pr
ise

s
SP

R
IN

G
 C

R
EE

K,
 N

EV
AD

A 
 8

98
15

20
02

16
0

IS
SU

E 
FO

R
 R

EV
IE

W
M

ES
8-

11
-2

0

77
5-

75
3-

51
00

sh
an

ks
en

g@
gm

ai
l.c

om
N

5T
H

 T
O

W
N

 H
O

M
E 

 S
BD

M
ES

KA
FS

M
ES

M
ES

59
9 

Sh
ad

yb
ro

ok
 D

r
Sp

rin
g 

C
re

ek
, N

V 
89

81
5

LOT DIMENSIONS
SCALE: 1" = 30'

SHEET INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURNAROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURNAROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
"ALIGN 1" 10+00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
"ALIGN. 1" 10+25 "ALIGN 2"   0+00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
"ALIGN 2" 3+17 "ALIGN 3" 0+00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2 CURB AND GUTTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY ACCESS ROAD TO M.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' REAR SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) PARKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) PARKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) PARKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.U.P.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2002160

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGION CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
JARBIDGE ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN HOME SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.U.P.-PLOT PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.U.P. 1        PLOT PLAN        PLOT PLAN    PLOT PLAN C.U.P. 2         ELEVATIONS  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Exp:6-30-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNETH A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
o.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRARY-SKALLA



T
I
T

L
E

:
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 
B

Y
:

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

o
.
:

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
N

A
M

E

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
N

O
.

S
C

A
L

E
:

A
S

 
S

H
O

W
N

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

o
.

REFERENCE

N
o

.

REVISIONS

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

B
Y

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D

C
H

E
C

K
E

D

D
R

A
W

N

D
A

T
E

9
8

2
 
W

O
L

F
 
C

R
.
 
D

R
.

S
h
a
n
k
s
 
E

n
t
e
r
p
r
i
s
e
s

S
P

R
I
N

G
 
C

R
E

E
K

,
 
N

E
V

A
D

A
 
 
8

9
8

1
5

2
0

0
2

1
6

0

I
S

S
U

R
E

 
F

O
R

 
P

H
A

S
E

 
1
 
D

I
S

C
U

S
S

I
O

N
M

E
S

8
-
1
1
-
2
0

7
7

5
-
7

5
3

-
5

1
0

0

s
h

a
n

k
s
e

n
g

@
g

m
a

i
l
.
c
o

m

N
5

T
H

 
T

O
W

N
 
H

O
M

E
 
 
S

B
D

5
9

9
 
S

H
A

D
Y

 
B

R
O

O
K

 
D

R
.

S
P

R
I
N

G
 
C

R
E

E
K

,
 
N

V
 
 
8

9
8

1
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPOSITION SHINGLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
PITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR PLASTER (STUCCO)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
PITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
PITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT ELEEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEFT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUP-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2002160

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGION CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT LLC 

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN SMALES

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN 001-610-093

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN HOME SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH 5TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.U.P. - ELEVATIONS



Agenda Item # I.A.4.  

Created on 8/14/2020  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone No. 

1-20, filed by the City of Elko, for a change in zoning from C (General Commercial) 

to PQP (Public, Quasi-Public) Zoning District, approximately 26,061 square feet of 

property, to bring the zoning district into conformance with the use of the property, 

and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  September 1, 2020 
 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS,  
 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: Planning Commission initiated this zone amendment at 

their July 7, 2020 meeting. This rezone would bring the zoning district into 

conformance with the use of the property.  
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Memo  
 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution which approves Rezone No. 1-20 based on facts and findings as presented 

in Staff Report dated August 14, 2020. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated August 14, 2020 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:   
 

 





Page 1 of 5

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

MEMO DATE: August 14, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: September 1, 2020
APPLICATION NUMBER: REZONE 1-20
APPLICANT: City of Elko
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

A rezone from (C) General Commercial to (PQP) Public, Quasi-Public, initiated by the
City of Elko Planning Commission.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



REZONE 1-20
City of Elko

Page 2 of 5

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: APN 001-472-014

PARCEL SIZE: 13,125 Square feet

EXISTING ZONING: C- General Commercial with application for zone
amendment to PQP –Public, Quasi, Public

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: Residential Medium Density with proposed change
to Public with Master Plan Amendment 2-20 to be
heard as a resolution by City Council on August 25,
2020

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed as City of Elko Fire Station

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
 The property is surrounded by:

o Northeast: Developed, Residential
o Northwest: Developed, Residential Special Overlay
o Southeast: Undeveloped, Commercial
o Southwest: Developed, Commercial

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-8 Public, Quasi-Public Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-21  Amendments
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND:

1. The application for the variance was filed as required under City Code 3-2-8 (C).
2. The applicant has applied for a variance (VAR 4-20) and it will be heard concurrent with

this application.
3. The property is not located in the Redevelopment Area.
4. The property is currently being served by City of Elko water and sewer and other non-

city utilities.

MASTER PLAN



REZONE 1-20
City of Elko

Page 3 of 5

Land Use:

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Medium Density Residential at the
time of application. The Planning Commission approved Resolution 2-20 for a Master
Plan amendment land use designation as public. The City Council will consider the same
Master Plan amendment at their meeting on August 25, 2020.

2. PQP-Public, Quasi-Public zoning district is listed as a corresponding zoning district for
Public.

3. Master Plan states that Public land use designation is applied to community and public
and quasi-public uses such as those associated with government, non-profit, and utilities.
Uses of land must comply with the Elko City Code, and must be compatible with, and not
frustrate, the Master Plan’s goals and policies. The property is currently being used for
government uses.

The approval of the zone amendment is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan with the approval of the Master Plan Amendment 2-20.

Transportation:

1. The area will be accessed from South 5th Street and South 9th Street.
2. South 5th Street is classified in the Transportation Component as a major arterial.
3. South 9th Street is classified as a Commercial / Industrial Collector.
4. There currently is pedestrian access along both frontages.

The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan
and will be consistent with the future transportation infrastructure.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the redevelopment area and therefore the Redevelopment Plan
was not considered for this application.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property sits outside the 30 year capture zone for the City of Elko wells.

The proposed zone district and proposed use for the property is in conformance with wellhead
protection plan.

SECTION 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts:

1. No building, structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building or
structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, moved, or structurally
altered, unless in conformity with all regulations specified in this subsection for the
district in which it is located.

2. No building or other structure shall hereafter be erected or altered:
a. To exceed the heights required by the current City Airport Master Plan;
b. To accommodate or house a greater number of families than as permitted in this
chapter;
c. To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or
d. To have narrower or smaller rear yards, front yards, side yards or other open spaces,



REZONE 1-20
City of Elko

Page 4 of 5

than required in this title; or in any other manner contrary to the provisions of this
chapter.

3. No part of a required yard, or other open space, or off street parking or loading space,
provided in connection with any building or use, shall be included as part of a yard, open
space, or off street parking or loading space similarly required for any other building.

4. No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall be reduced in dimension or area
below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. The property meets the area
requirements for the proposed zone district.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B) with the
approval of variance 4-20.

SECTION 3-2-8 – PQP Public, Quasi-Public District

1. The property is developed and doesn’t meet the street line setback for South 9th Street.

The proposed zone district is not in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-8 and
approval of Variance 4-20 will be required to be in conformance.

SECTION 3-2-21:

The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21 with the filing of this application.

SECTION 3-8:

The proposed zone district is not located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

FINDINGS:

1. The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan with the approval of Master Plan Amendment 2-20.

2. The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan and is consistent with the future transportation infrastructure.

3. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

4. The proposed zone district and resultant land use is in conformance with City Wellhead
Protection Plan.

5. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B) with
the approval of variance 4-20.

6. The proposed zone district is not in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-8 and
requires approval of Variance 4-20 to be in conformance.

7. The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21.

8. The proposed zone district is not located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area



REZONE 1-20
City of Elko

Page 5 of 5

(SFHA).

9. Development under the proposed zone district will not adversely impact natural systems,
or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a
danger to human health and safety.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be CONDITIONALLY APPROVED with the following conditions:

1. Master Plan amendment 2-20 is approved.
2. Variance 4-20 is approved for street line setback from South 9th Street.























Agenda Item # I.A.5.  

Created on 8/17/20  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 4-20, filed by City of Elko 

for a reduction of the required setback from any street line from 27’ to 8.56’, on the South 

9th Street Line, within a PQP (Public, Quasi-public) Zoning District, and matters related 

thereto, FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  September 1, 2020 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 
  

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 
5. Background Information: The property is currently a City of Elko Fire Station and the City 

of Elko has applied for a zone amendment to modify the zoning to be in conformance with 

the current use. The property, as developed, does not meet the street line setback 

requirement for South 9th Street. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report 

 
8. Recommended Motion: Move to conditionally approve Variance 4-20 based on the facts, 

findings and conditions presented in Staff Report dated August 13, 2020. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff report dated August 13, 2020. 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  





Page 1 of 4

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: August 13, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: September 1, 2020
APPLICATION NUMBER: Variance 4-20
APPLICANT: City of Elko
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Existing Fire Station
RELATED APPLICATIONS: REZ 1-20

A variance request from provisions under Section 3-2-8, requiring minimum setbacks from
any street line in a Public, Quasi-Public District. The minimum setback requirements from
any street line within the PQP District are 1 ½ times the building height for the principal
building.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7219



VAR 4-20
City of Elko

Page 2 of 4

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: APN 001-472-014

PARCEL SIZE: 13,125 Square feet

EXISTING ZONING: C- General Commercial with application for zone
amendment to PQP –Public, Quasi, Public

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: Residential Medium Density with proposed change
to Public with Master Plan Amendment 2-20 to be
heard as a resolution by City Council on August 25,
2020

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed as City of Elko Fire Station

BACKGROUND:

1. The application for the variance was filed as required under City Code 3-2-8 (C).
2. The applicant has applied for a zone amendment (REZ 1-20) and it will be heard

concurrent with this application.
3. The property is not located in the Redevelopment Area.
4. The property is currently being served by City of Elko water and sewer and other non-

city utilities.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
 The property is surrounded by:

o Northeast: Developed, Residential
o Northwest: Developed, Residential Special Overlay
o Southeast: Undeveloped, Commercial
o Southwest: Developed, Commercial

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN SECTIONS AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-8 Public, Quasi-Public Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-22 Variances

MASTER PLAN - Land Use:

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Medium Density Residential at the
time of application. The Planning Commission approved Resolution 2-20 for a Master
Plan amendment land use designation as public. The City Council will consider the same
Master Plan amendment at their meeting on August 25, 2020.

2. PQP-Public, Quasi-Public zoning district is listed as a corresponding zoning district for
Public.

3. Master Plan states that Public land use designation is applied to community and public
and quasi-public uses such as those associated with government, non-profit, and utilities.



VAR 4-20
City of Elko

Page 3 of 4

Uses of land must comply with the Elko City Code, and must be compatible with, and not
frustrate, the Master Plan’s goals and policies. The property is currently being used for
government uses.

The approval of the variance from the setback requirements stipulated for the PQP zoning district
is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan with the approval of the
Master Plan Amendment 2-20.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the redevelopment area and therefore the Redevelopment Plan
was not considered for this application.

SECTION 3-2-8 PUBLIC, QUASI-PUBLIC DISTRICT:

1. The Minimum Setback From Any Street Line: Not less than one and one-half (11/2) times
the height of the principal building. Elko County School District is submitting a parcel
map for the consolidation of the two parcels, the setbacks would not have any interior
side yard or rear setback requirements as the new consolidated parcel will have street
frontage along all four sides.

a. The following setbacks are required, all horizontal measurements for setback
requirements are for the principal building on this parcel:

i. Street line setback requirements
1. Max. Building height is 18’ high.
2. 27’ distance required to any street line
3. 39.30’ to South 5th Street property line
4. 8.56’ setback provided to 9th Street property line and therefore the

request for a variance would be for the reduction of the street line
setback requirement to 9th Street.

2. Maximum Lot Coverage: The total ground floor area of the building shall not exceed
thirty five percent (35%) of the net site area

a. The building is approximately 3,874 sq. ft. with lot area of 13,153 sq. ft. which
would be 29.45%.

Approval of Variance 4-20 is required to be in conformance with Section 3-2-8 of City Code.

SECTION 3-2-22 VARIANCES:

B. Procedure: Any person requesting a variance by the planning commission shall include:

Application Requirements

1. There are special circumstances or features, i.e., unusual shape, configuration,
exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary situations or conditions
applying to the property under consideration.

2. The special circumstance or extraordinary situation or condition results in exceptional
practical difficulties or exceptional undue hardships, and where the strict application of
the provision or requirement constitutes an abridgment of property right and deprives the
property owner of reasonable use of property.

3. Such special circumstances or conditions do not apply generally to other properties in the
same zoning district.



VAR 4-20
City of Elko

Page 4 of 4

4. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other
properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety and
general welfare.

5. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the
zoning ordinance or effect a change of land use or zoning classification.

6. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural resources.

 The property has been existing as a City of Elko Fire Station for numerous years and
therefore the zoning did not reflect the current use. The zone amendment and master plan
amendment address the zoning to match the existing land use. If the property was to be
approved for a PQP zoning district, the property has to meet the development standards
for that zoning district or be approved a variance from the development standards.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed variance approval is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

2. The property is not located within the redevelopment area.

3. The property as developed, does not exceed the thirty five percent of the net site area lot
coverage.

4. Approval of Variance 4-20 will bring the existing property into conformance with
Section 3-2-8 of City Code.

5. The special circumstance is directly related to the property as it is developed as a City of
Elko Fire Station.

6. The special circumstance of a fully developed property not meeting the street line setback
for 9th Street with the proposed zone amendment to PQP. This circumstance does not
generally apply to other properties in the district.

7. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other
properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety and
general welfare.

7. The granting of the variance is directly related to the zoning of the property and will not
impair the intent or purpose of the zoning and will not change the use of the land or
zoning classification.

8. The granting of the variance will not impair natural resources.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

1. Approval of Rezone 1-20.





















Agenda Item # I.A.6. 

Created on 8/18/20  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone No. 

4-20, filed by the City of Elko, for a change in zoning from PQP (Public, Quasi-

Public) to LI (Light Industrial) Zoning District, approximately 2,800 square feet of 

property, to bring the zoning district into conformance with the proposed use of the 

property, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  September 1, 2020 
 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS,  
 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: City Council initiated this zone amendment at their August 

25, 2020 meeting. This rezone would bring the zoning district into conformance with 

the proposed use of the property.  
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Memo  
 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution which approves Rezone No. 4-20 based on facts and findings as presented 

in Staff Report dated August 18, 2020. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated August 18, 2020 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:   
 

 





Page 1 of 4

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

MEMO DATE: August 18, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: September 1, 2020
APPLICATION NUMBER: REZONE 4-20
APPLICANT: City of Elko
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

A rezone from (PQP) Public, Quasi-Public to (LI) Light Industrial. Initiated by the City
Council.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



REZONE 4-20
City of Elko

Page 2 of 4

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-01R-001

PARCEL SIZE: 2,800 sq. ft. proposed to be amended

EXISTING ZONING: PQP- Public, Quasi-Public

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: Public

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
 The property is surrounded by:

 North: PQP / Undeveloped
 West: PQP / Undeveloped
 South: General Industrial (GI) / Developed
 East: PQP / Undeveloped

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
 The area is currently undeveloped.
 The area is part of a very large parcel adjacent to the Humboldt River and HARP trail.
 The area is accessed from Front Street.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-8 Public, Quasi-Public Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-21  Amendments
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND:

1. Safelink, now referred to as Anthem Broadband of Nevada, LLC, requested the City of
Elko sell the 2,800 sq. ft. portion of the larger parcel to them for development of their
services throughout the community.

2. City Council initiated this zone amendment at their August 25, 2020 meeting.
3. The City of Elko will be conducting a public hearing on the fair market value of the

property at their meeting August 25, 2020 and will determine if it is in the best interest
of the City of Elko to sell the parcel.

4. City of Elko will be required to record a parcel map to create the parcel prior to the
sale of the land. The zone amendment legal description and display site plan are based



REZONE 4-20
City of Elko

Page 3 of 4

on the information shown on the parcel map.

MASTER PLAN:

Land use:

1. Land Use is shown as Public.
2. LI is not a supporting zoning district for public.
3. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide

natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The proposed zone district is not in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master
Plan. A future Master Plan Amendment will be required to bring the property into conformance.

Transportation:

1. The area will be accessed Front Street.

The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property sits outside any capture zone for the City of Elko wells.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with wellhead protection plan.

SECTION 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts:

1. No building, structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building or
structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, moved, or structurally
altered, unless in conformity with all regulations specified in this subsection for the
district in which it is located.

2. No building or other structure shall hereafter be erected or altered:
a. To exceed the heights required by the current City Airport Master Plan;
b. To accommodate or house a greater number of families than as permitted in this
chapter;
c. To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or
d. To have narrower or smaller rear yards, front yards, side yards or other open spaces,
than required in this title; or in any other manner contrary to the provisions of this
chapter.

3. No part of a required yard, or other open space, or off street parking or loading space,
provided in connection with any building or use, shall be included as part of a yard, open
space, or off street parking or loading space similarly required for any other building.

4. No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall be reduced in dimension or area



REZONE 4-20
City of Elko

Page 4 of 4

below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. The property meets the area
requirements for the proposed zone district.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B).

SECTION 3-2-12 – LI, GI Industrial Districts

As the property develops, it will be required to be in conformance with Elko City Code Section
3-2-12.

SECTION 3-2-21:

The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21 with the filing of this application.

SECTION 3-8:

A small portion of the proposed zone district is located in a designated Special Flood Hazard
Area (SFHA). Compliance with ECC 3-8 will be required as the property develops.

FINDINGS:

1. The proposed zone district is not in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

2. The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.

3. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

4. The proposed zone district and resultant land use is in conformance with City Wellhead
Protection Plan.

5. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B).

6. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-12.

7. The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21.

8. The proposed zone district is located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

9. Development under the proposed zone district will not adversely impact natural systems,
or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a
danger to human health and safety.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

1. Parcel map to create the 2,800 sq. ft. parcel and easements as needed.






















































	09-01-20 Agenda.pdf (p.1-4)
	08-04-2020 - DRAFT Minutes.pdf (p.5-26)
	Item I.A.1. New Business - Public Hearing - TM 6-20 Jarbidge Estates.pdf (p.27-83)
	Item I.A.2. New Business - Public Hearing - Rez 5-20 Legion Const & Development LLC.pdf (p.84-101)
	Item I.A.3. New Business - Public Hearing - CUP 4-20 Legion Const & Development.pdf (p.102-120)
	Item I.A.4. New Business - Public Hearing - Rez 1-20 City of Elko.pdf (p.121-137)
	Item I.A.5. New Business - Public Hearing - VAR 4-20 City of Elko.pdf (p.138-152)
	Item I.A.6. New Business - Public Hearing - Rez 4-20 City of Elko.pdf (p.153-168)
	Zoning Bulletin - 07-10-20.pdf (p.169-176)
	Zoning Bulletin - 07-25-20.pdf (p.177-184)

